WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
7 ME 2 Foe A 6 B 2 )

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

O P 28 B L 2 AT PRA ] )

Stock Code BARRHE : 8421




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winson Holdings
Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 2702, 27th Floor

Tower 2, Nina Tower

No. 8 Yeung Uk Road
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Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8421

COMPANY WEBSITE
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REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 755 ik B2

Year ended 31 March
HZ3AMALEE

2018 2017
20184 20174  Percentage
Notes (HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
B 5 (BEE®ER) (B8AT) BOLESH
Key Financial Figures TERBET
Revenue I = 508.1 467.5 8.7%
Gross Profit Bl 76.9 67.3 14.2%
Profit for the year* F (A g ) * 21.8 8.7 151.2%
Total Assets BEE 186.1 195.4 -4.8%
Total Equity M AR 113.4 91.6 23.8%
Key Financial Ratios TEPKL R
Gross profit margin F F & 1 15.1% 14.4%
Net profit margin Fary Y| pes 2 4.3% 1.9%
Return on equity N El e S 3 19.2% 9.5%
Return on total assets A ERRE 4 11.7% 4.4%
Dividend payout ratio K B b & 5 46.0% =
Interest coverage ratio M EE R =X 6 27.0 times{g 6.6 times 1
Current ratio Vs =S 7 2.4 times{g 1.7 times &
Quick ratio RB) L =K 8 2.4 times{Z 1.7 times =
Gearing ratio BEREGBLX 9 0.2 times{Z 0.4 times &

Notes:

One-off listing expenses in the amount of approximately HK$10.4 million was
incurred for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Gross profit margin is calculated based on the gross profit for the year divided by
revenue for the year. Gross profit equals to revenue minus cost of services.

HE2017783F31ALFERNEE A LETRAZY
10.4B&8ETT

B aE

EMEDRFRENBRIAFAREFE - EFNER K

2. Net profit margin is calculated based on the profit for the year divided by revenue A ETRFE R MR AFE A RS E o
for the year.

3. Return on equity is calculated based on the profit for the year divided by total MRAE R TR F R m MR A F RERBTETH -
equity as at the end of the year.

4. Return on total assets is calculated based on the profit for the year divided by total BEELRBREDRFABHNBRUFREBEETH -
assets as at the end of the year.

5. Dividend payout ratio is calculated based on the total amount of dividend to be RELLETDRETERNRESBE(AEFRRERER
declared, subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual BRERBFRNEG HAERFATIEER)BRUF AR TG
general meeting, divided by profit for the year. Ho

6. Interest coverage ratio is calculated based on profit before interest and tax for the S AE R X TR F BRI S R B IE AT &R R BR A F A
year divided by interest expenses for the year. MERAXZEE -

7. Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total MBLEDRTDEELAERAFERTBD B EERE
current liabilities at the end of the year. HE -

8. Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current assets RBUEDRADEELERTEBRIANERTD
and inventories divided by the total current liabilities as at the end of the year. BEMAETHE -

9. Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total bank borrowings divided by the total B R A E R TR F RN & B IR 1T 8 SR AR FE R DA

equity of the Group at the end of the year.

mAEE -
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT
EY R

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Over the past year, the business conditions have remained difficult for
all players in environmental hygiene services and airline catering
support services, owing in large part to a shortage of labour that in
turn has driven up associated costs. Despite of this, we have been
able to partly alleviate such cost pressures by achieving a favourable
top line performance, which for the year amounted to approximately
HK$508.1 million in revenue, representing a respectable year-on-year
increase of 8.7%. Just as encouraging, our gross profit increased to
approximately HK$76.9 million (FY2017: HK$67.3 million), thus
surpassing our figures for the 2016 and 2017 financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The overall progress made by the Group during the year is as much a
reflection of our expertise and strong presence in the environmental
hygiene services and airline catering support services markets of Hong
Kong, as it is our ability to capitalise on strong ties with reputable
customers which also facilitate our exploration of new business
opportunities. Certainly our long history and proven track record of
providing end-to-end services that have underpinned the “Winson”
brand’s sterling reputation are significant factors as well in enabling
us to achieve progress. Yet other key factors worth acknowledging
are our highly experienced management team and well-trained staff,
all of whom have had a direct hand in elevating the Group upmarket
to increase profitability.

The environmental hygiene and related services segment has been our
key business interest for over 30 years and continues to be our
primary source of revenue, contributing approximately HK$467.7
million to the Group for the year. In addition to achieving a rise in
turnover, the segment also reported a notable year-on-year double-
digit increase in gross profit of 16.3% to approximately HK$72.6
million (FY2017: HK$62.4 million). The favourable performance of the
environmental hygiene and related services business is a direct
reflection of our strong ties with key clients, which includes many
prominent management companies, that generates many new
contracts and new work in tenanted area. From the various contracts
secured, as well as many ongoing contracts, we have been able to
overcome rising labour costs in a labour intensive industry.
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As for the airline catering support services business, revenue climbed
to approximately HK$40.4 million for the year (FY2017: HK$34.9
million), though gross profit fell to approximately HK$4.3 million
(FY2017: HK$5.0 million). While an unlikely offshoot of the
environmental hygiene and related services segment, this business has
nonetheless grown encouragingly, which is both a testament to our
resolve to develop new revenue streams and our management’s
farsightedness. Even though this segment experienced a decline in
gross profit due to the ongoing labour shortage, we trust that our
ability to consistently deliver high-quality services to Hong Kong-based
airline catering providers will eventually result in a turnaround in
performance.

PROSPECTS

In the coming year, we expect both our business segments will
continue to secure contracts with various clients; however, the spectre
of labour shortages and high labour costs remains. We are therefore
cautiously optimistic about our prospects, and will conduct our
operations with a decided focus on controlling costs. At the same
time, we will look to further penetrate our key markets by leveraging
business relations and by delivering exceptional services that our
clients have grown accustomed to and reliant upon. In building
mutually beneficial ties with our customers, we will thus be able to
further bolster our market position, leading ultimately to greater value
creation for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my appreciation to the
entire management team and all staff members who make up the
Winson workforce for their dedication and diligence during the past
year. | wish to also thank all of our customers for their unwavering
commitment to the Group. Lastly, | would like to express my gratitude
to our shareholders for being the Group’s staunchest supporters.

By Order of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 25 May 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o VLG W) B o3

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$508.1 million (FY2017: HK$467.5 million), with
gross profit rising by 14.2% year-on-year to approximately HK$76.9
million (FY2017: HK$67.3 million). Gross profit margin climbed to
15.1% — up from 14.4% in the preceding year. Profit for the year
amounted to approximately HK$21.8 million, compared with
approximately HK$8.7 million last year. Net profit margin reached 4.3%
(FY2017: 1.9% and approximately 4.1% excluding listing expenses).

During the year, the total value of awarded contracts amounted to
HK$593.7 million (FY2017: HK$424.3 million) of which HK$559.8
million represented renewed contracts (FY2017: HK$381.4 million).
The Group remained in a healthy financial position, with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$39.5 million.

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Environmental Hygiene and Related Services

Environmental hygiene and related services constituted the primary
revenue contributor of the Group, generating revenue of HK$467.7
million (FY2017: HK$432.6 million) for the year, and accounting for
92.1% of the Group’s total revenue. Segmental gross profit of
HK$72.6 million was recorded as compared with HK$62.4 million for
the corresponding period last year, with gross profit margin at 15.5%
(FY2017: 14.4%). The estimated total value of contracts in hand as at
31 March 2018 was HK$940 million, HK$581 million of which was
ongoing contracts. The Group won 19 new contracts during the year,
valued at approximately HK$33.9 million in total.

As one of the significant environmental hygiene services providers in
Hong Kong, the Group has leveraged its stature, expertise and
dynamic workforce of 1,862 full-time and part-time workers to earn
contracts with respectable property owners and management
companies, a mass transit transportation operator and the Hong Kong
Government. In the past year, the Group has continued to add to its
portfolio of upscale residential projects, providing hygiene services to
premium properties such as The Bloomsway in Tuen Mun and Mantin
Heights in Ho Man Tin, which have contract sums of approximately
HK$0.5 million and HK$0.4 million per month respectively. In
addition, the Group has retained its contract with the aforementioned
mass transit transportation operator, covering its East, West and Ma
On Shan lines, as well as Light Rail stations. The contract — valued at
over HK$2 million per month — entails cleaning of tracks, tunnels and
plant rooms, including certain high-level cleaning services, i.e. areas
that are above three metres.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Airline Catering Support Services

The airline catering support services business has been a welcomed
addition to the Group since 2013, providing a steady source of
supplemental income. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
business generated revenue of HK$40.4 million (FY2017: HK$34.9
million). However, due to a rise in cost of services, gross profit fell to
HK$4.3 million (FY2017: HK$5.0 million), with gross profit margin
slipping to 10.7% (FY2017: 14.2%).

The healthy generation of revenue largely reflects income from
existing contracts held by the Group, the majority of which will not
expire until the 2018 and 2019 financial years. As at 31 March 2018,
the estimated total value of contracts in hand amounted to
approximately HK$66.6 million, of which HK$16.6 million represented
ongoing contracts.

PROSPECTS

The upcoming financial year is expected to be challenging owing to
intense competition, aggravated by the ongoing labour shortage.
Worth noting as well is that the majority of contracts for
environmental hygiene and related services have either been renewed
or awarded to industry players including the Group. Nonetheless, the
airline catering support services segment is expected to sustain
growth, driven by a resurgent tourism industry in Hong Kong.

Irrespective of market conditions, the management recognises the
need to constantly bolster operations in order to maintain the Group’s
competitiveness and appeal to existing and potential customers.
Correspondingly, the Group will continue to adopt and upgrade
relevant technologies that aid its ability to monitor all facets of
operation, leading to the optimisation of processes. It will also look to
lessen its dependence on human labour where feasible in view of
escalating costs resulting from the labour shortage, while at the same
time enhance training of those workers who are indispensable for
certain services, including safety-related training so as to protect the
Group's sterling reputation for safety. Such training and safety-
mindedness are among the features that have distinguished the
Group from its peers, and the management is fully committed to
harnessing their associated benefits going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEC R e

With the new financial year at hand, the management will also look
to strengthen ties with its many customers to realise new business
opportunities. At the same time, it will leverage the Group’s track
record of successfully providing end-to-end services to attract new
clients to the fold. While engaging in such endeavours, the
management will be mindful as well of further moving the Group
upmarket to enhance profitability. Through these and other efforts,
the management trusts that the Group will be able to achieve
sustainable growth and create value for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2018, total revenue was approximately
HK$508.1 million (2017: approximately HK$467.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately 8.7%. The increase of
revenue was attributable to the secure of few substantial, both new
and renewed, contracts during the year. The new work in tenanted
area secured also contributed a major growth in revenue generated
during the year.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment
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BEBIT(2017F : V4675 B BB T)  BIFH
87% - WRBIMTIARFANESETEAFTE
WEBEHAD FESHETAONAFTFAK
HARIEEREREE -

AEEZ D EE DB W DT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 % HK$’000 %
FET FAT
Environmental hygiene RIREAE R
and related services P 7 467,745 92.1 432,619 925
Airline catering support  fii ZZ & &k 2 R 1%
services 40,361 7.9 34,894 7.5
Total FE 508,106 100.0 467,513 100.0

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue from environmental
hygiene and related services amounted to approximately HK$467.7
million (FY2017: approximately HK$432.6 million), accounting for
92.1% of total revenue (FY2017: 92.5%). Revenue from airline
catering support services was approximately HK$40.4 million,
representing 7.9% of total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$34.9 million and 7.5% of total
revenue). Revenue from both environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services increased approximately
8.1% and approximately 15.7% respectively as compared to those for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

HZE2018F3A31BLFE RARBEFER
HRIRS 2 W/ A467.78 878 T (20178 K
FE:HN4N6EEBT)  HABKERR2.1%
(20179 B F [Z 1 92.5%) ° # £20184 3 A 31
BIEFE REMEERIEBERB Z2KELD
BA0AE BB H B ET.9% (2017 8 BLF
fE: #3498 8B T RIERIRETS%) - kB
BREAERBEEREEAMEERNIERE Z
W REEHE2017FE3 831 B IEFEE H B I 4
81% K& #)15.7% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Services

For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the cost of services of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$431.2 million and
HK$400.2 million respectively, representing approximately 84.9% and
85.6% of the Group's revenue for the corresponding years. Our cost
of services mainly comprised direct wages, consumables and sub-
contracting fees. The slightly decrease of cost of services in proportion
to the Group's revenue was mainly due to tight cost control and
engagement of machineries to help out in carrying out the services.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit increased from approximately HK$67.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$76.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018. The gross profit margin increased from
approximately 14.4% for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately 15.1% for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
following table sets forth breakdown of gross profit and gross profit
margin by segment.

Year ended 31 March 2018

o BLJE W B e B

AR %% B A

HZE2018F N2017F3A31HIEFE  AEH
HIRRTERK A D Bl 4) 243128 & /8 7T 240028
EBET GASEHEEFERZEALS49% K
85.6% AEBERBEXN AT EBEEHTE -
RV EDBER - IR AME A & B U= 7l
AR TN PR T 3 2 R 0 og B AN 15 i) K% {5 R A 2R
SHEFABERS -

EMNREFNR

EFMBEE2017F3831HIEFERNH67TIE
EBTEMNMEHE2018F3A31B IEFENY
769BEE AT EF XK EE2017F3H31H
IEFERH144%B INEE £2018F3 318
FFERL151%c TREHIZHDHEDHE
I K EF R EF4H o

Year ended 31 March 2017

BZE2018F3A31BLLFE HZE2017F3A31BILEFE
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit Margin
EF E = EH ESRES
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FATT
Environmental hygiene RIBEEENAR
and related services B 75 72,576 15.5 62,383 14.4
Airline catering support  fin 2= B 8k X 1B IR 7%
services 4,314 10.7 4,955 14.2
Total BET 76,890 15.1 67,338 14.4

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services
increased by approximately 16.3% from approximately HK$62.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$72.6 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018. The increase of gross profit of
environmental hygiene and related services for the year ended 31
March 2018 was mainly due to the secure of few, both new and
renewed, substantial contracts and increase of work in tenanted area
also played a role in the substantial growth of gross profit. The gross
profit of all newly acquired contracts were able to maintain a steady
and good profit margin.

RBEERABEREENBSHZ201743 A 31
HIEFERMOABEEEILIENE16.3% = &
Z2018F3H3IHIEFENT26E BB L &
Z2018F3ANB L FEREHERBBARS
EHAENEEANESETERTAONLE
FAEORARANENSENGESEERER -
FTEFESAHMEMNTSHRMEUERET
R B R T EE -
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The gross profit of airline catering support services decreased by
approximately 12.9% from approximately HK$5.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$4.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The decrease of gross profit margin of airline
catering support services for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
mainly due to the increase of labour cost. The severe condition of
labour supply in Tung Chung area has pushed the labour cost way
high. The actual labour cost will be reflected in the coming contract
renewal.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately HK$7.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 18.0% to
approximately HK$49.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 as
compared with approximately HK$42.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by 56.7% from approximately
HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$1.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. Such decrease was
mainly due to the Group used its own fund rather than bank loan for
working capital requirement.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group's profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for each of the year ended 31 March 2018
and 2017 were approximately HK$21.8 million and HK$8.7 million
respectively, representing of approximately 4.3% and 1.9% of the
respective year’s total revenue. By excluding listing expenses in total
of approximately HK$10.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Group'’s profit attributable to owners of the Company would be
approximately HK$19.1 million or representing of approximately 4.1%
of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Capital Expenditure

During the year 2018, our capital expenditure which mainly included
additions in motor vehicles and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$5.2 million (FY2017: HK$1.9 million). These capital
expenditures were funded by proceeds from share offer on 16 March
2017.

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)

MEZRTERBEMNBEEZ2017F3HA318
IEFEMHS0BEEELRLN1NI%EEE
2018F3HA3NBIEFEMNNA4IEES T  HE
2018F3A3H L FEMEERTEREEF
KT E B RR A TGN - 357 & B
I ) 85 T4 Ak 0 B 45 TR AN 360 - B PR 45
IHAERARREHEER R -

—REERAX

— L BEE2017FE3A3AIEEED
HWRNBHEBTIEMY768BHAT418.0%
EHZE2018FE3A31B ILFENNI9.7TH E S
7T|:O

Al & B 2

AEBMRMEKRAEH Z=2017F3831HLEF
EWH2ABEBITRBD56.7% EEH E20184F3
A3IBLEFEMNNIOBEEBS T - BERL
TEARAEEFRAEEESMIERTEEN
MREEESF K

ARTREBABEFRRNR2EY
= A

HE2018F K2017F3A3IBEFERF - K
RAEEABREAEE G R2EKEBED
A2 8EEBE LRI TAE BT (hHHESE
BN 44.3% K% 1.9% ° 1K E £ 201743
B3BILEEAFYAI04AEEETZ LTH
S BE2017FE3ANBIEFEARGIHEA
ABRAEBRAENRI1I01EESB THRER
HH41% o

EAXRX

R2018F  AEEEARAT(FERERE A
BREH)AORS2EEATQO7THMBEE
19BEABL) ZEEAXAHMAEZIIAH2017F3A
16ABRMBEEEENAMBRERN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$148.6 million (31 March 2017:
HK$159.7 million) and HK$62.4 million (31 March 2017: HK$94.4
million) respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 2.4
times (31 March 2017: approximately 1.7 times).

The Group had total assets of approximately HK$186.1 million which
is financed by total liabilities and total equity of approximately
HK$72.7 million and HK$113.4 million respectively. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$39.5 million (31 March 2017: approximately HK$71.4 million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.2 times as at 31 March 2018 (31
March 2017: 0.4 times), which was calculated based on the total
bank borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the
year ended 31 March 2018. As at 31 March 2018, the issued share
capital of the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 2,101 (31 March 2017: 2,500)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts
with each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions
based on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and
related expenses (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 were approximately HK$319.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 2.2% or approximately
HK$6.9 million as compared with approximately HK$312.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

o BLIE i B e Bt
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R2018F3A31MH  AEBRHEER KD E
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Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted
under the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution
to the Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the
members of the Group. Further share options may be granted under
share option scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel,
provide additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as
well as promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
on-going training regularly to relevant staff across different
departments with topics including but not limited to information
technology, environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as
well as trainings for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either
provided internally or by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of
the costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2018,
there was no significant exposure to foreign exchange rate and the
Group did not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange
risk. The management will consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, as disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements, the actual use of the leasehold land and buildings (the
“Property”) does not comply with the permitted use and is beach of
section 25(1) of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for failure to notify the Buildings Department regarding
the change of land use.

Although the Group changed its head office during the year ended
31 March 2018 and use the Property as warehouse which is complied
with the permitted use as at 31 March 2018, the prosecution under
the provisions of the Buildings Ordinance may be commenced within
12 months of the commission of the offence or within 12 months of
the same being discovered by or coming to the notice of the relevant
government departments. As such, as at 31 March 2018 and 2017,
pursuant to section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum
exposure of the fine as a result of the aforesaid matter is
approximately HK$100,000.

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, no trade receivables were assigned and charged
for secured the banking facilities (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$23.1 million).

The Group's leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$29.2 million as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$30.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank
loan of the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$0.4 million in respect of contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment (31 March
2017: approximately HK$0.2 million in respect of authorised but not
contracted for purchase of property, plant and equipment).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total commitments under
operating leases in respect of non-cancellable operating leases for
land and buildings to make payment in the future years were
approximately HK$2.0 million which represent rental payable by the
Group for office and staff quarters (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$0.1 million for staff quarters only).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31
March 2018.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28
February 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have other plans
for material investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2018.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share, the net proceeds from
the share offer, after deducting listing related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group will utilise such net
proceeds from the share offer for the purposes set out in the section
headed “Statement of Business Objectives and Use of Proceeds” in
the Prospectus. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s planned application
and actual utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below:

EAREHREREENRKTE

B QTR A2017F2A2B0M B RER
([BRERDAEEEI HZE2018F3 A31
B AEBTEEMEAREREREE:T

E I

FRIEREAR

BHEBERKM042B Tt RO BEEMSE
RIEFEENBR EmABERATE) O A40.18
EAT - AEEBEBREBANIESBIZR
MEMESHRERR] — Mo REEH
f&1n B EFT1S RIE F 5 - 201843 H31H -
AEEMEREFBAERAELRERSAG

1=K

AEHNMT

Percentage of Actual Unutilised net

total net Planned usage up to proceeds as at

proceeds applications 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

BZE2018F MN2018%3A

15 P18 RR 3A31HZ 31BZX8AH

Use of proceeds FFBRERE FHEBOL STEAE EBERHABER MEXREFE

HK$ in million  HK$ in million  HK$ in million

BEATT BEET BEAT
For strengthening the Group's hnog 7N £ E &) Ay
available financial resources to FA 871 7% & IR A
finance cash flow mismatch under & IB1E2 4 418
the tender contracts TR e RER

RHtES 45.0% 18.1 18.1 —
For increasing the market FHEERIIE:-PINCS
penetration by strengthen the mEHEERS

promotion of the Group's brand miHEAE X 7.0% 2.8 0.7 2.1
For strengthening the established ~ Z [ 7E & # 1B 15
position in the environmental Bk 7% % N &9 BT

services industry in Hong Kong B HfL 19.0% 7.6 4.1 3.5
For enhancing the information BB R
technology system to strengthen GUAREKS
operational efficiency and service ~ W& & R ZE

qualities = 19.0% 7.6 1.6 6.0
For the use as general working BEAREER—K

capital of the Group BEED 10.0% 4.0 4.0 —

Total #EEt 40.1 28.5 11.6




17
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 20184F4E )t

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH EXBEHEREKERNWEE

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives of the Group as setout FERERFFAEBNEFKEZEAEFHE
in the Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the 20183 A31B I FEHNER XK ERNHE R

year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below: DITEH M -
Business objectives Actual business progress

Strengthen the Group’s available financial resources to finance
cash flow mismatch under the tender contracts
EEAXAEENTAMBERAABESHAETRESRERRM
-

o Finance the payment of the salaries of the Group’s full time and e 100% of fund available has been used, as
part time staff to reduce the financial impact on the time lag intended
between making payment of salaries to the Group’s employees
and receiving payments from its customers and the possible
increase in the statutory minimum wage

e ARASEZBIERBEINIEXNEMNES URPME o CRADPHAZILARE
AEBEREEXNIEHAHET P WK FEEREZE A
EREIEMRENNMBETE

K

Increase the market penetration by strengthen the promotion
of the Group’s brand
BEAMBAEEREERRETSEAR

o Distribution of company brochure and marketing materials to The new company brochure is now being used and

target customers distributed to potential tendering parties and target
customers
e RMERBFFLHDBELQASEMETISHEESEH WEEAHAASEM WHBETEEHRRA
TRERERP
o Design and implement online platform to provide on-line Company website is under revamp, online
communication channel for major customers communication channel for clients and customers is
also under the website revamp project
e RIREBEHRBLTARIETFRHBLBARE AAMBEEESR BEEREPELBMESE
TRE A B SR E B
o Continue to maintain online platform to provide on-line

communication channel for major customers
o BEEAFALTE RIEXFPREEAELEARSE
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Business objectives

XBEER

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)

Actual business progress

BERRBER

Participate in marketing events as well as activities held by
environmental protection and health organizations

SEMBSHERELIPUALARERERFEABZEINNEY
Social media management

RIS E IR

Strengthen the established position in the environmental
services industry in Hong Kong
EEEERRERBERNNBR AL

Employ 2 assistant general managers and 1 senior safety
manager

BA2EBAKERZSRLEKRE

Employ 2 middle-ranking management staff
EBA2ZHEEERAE

Acquire additional equipment such as water wagons, cullet
crusher, garbage compressor vehicle and escalator cleaners

BEEZREWWBKE BRBEEE NRERE
SRR TN Y

Upgrade marble polish machine and acquire additional
equipment such as hook-lift truck, aerial platform vehicle and
ride-on scrubber driers

FBRREAEXEANREE LMK
EERXBERERA L)

R (Pl ERE &

Ongoing participation of events held by trade
associations
FREZ2RESBEENNEDY

Advertisement placed at Association yearbook,
and/annual directory

RBpEFER FERERNES

Designated manpower for respective areas has been
employed to enhance overall operation process,
including 1 senior operation manager, 1 safety
supervisor and 1 safety officer

EEAZERNETAFURABRREBLER
FrEf1aefeERRE 1822 ETI A

>EB

=4

ﬁ}

2 supervisors has been employed for the setting up
of one additional operation line
ERER—IGEERER2RET

Truck with tailor gate has been purchased for
transporting garbage to enhance efficiency and
safety of operations
ERETREROURBERN RARTLE
WMERLZE

Designated equipment (i.e. marble polisher, hook-lift
truck and two garbage trucks) has been upgraded to
improve efficiency of site operations. Ride-on
scrubbers has been purchased. Scrubbers, driers, wet
vacuum cleaners and hydraulic platform have been
purchased to enhance safety, image and efficiency of
operation

EAREEXREEIREBEAEXH RNERER
MM IRE)  RARGEFNRIER - BBEA
ALK DR E S 3R  BARE
WERBBABEAGANBREELZS R EME
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business objectives Actual business progress

EBER ERRBER

Enhance the information technology (IT) system to strengthen
operational efficiency and service qualities

MREANRARURSEERRRRBER

o Enhance daily operation by procuring cloud storage and cloud Designated system server, software, equipment and

server services cloud storage are being purchased and upgraded in
progress for respective operation functions
s FRNFEMBRERENRMAMBBERABRELE FERBXBIAEBEREMNEE ZRRMAMR

BB REBREREST

o Maintenance of IT systems and softwares

s HEREBAMREGKLRIMS

o Addition of IT equipment at headquarters and worksites

s HABRIFESAMMBEMRER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o N R E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance
in management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the paragraph headed “Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer” below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the Directors will use their best endeavours to procure the Company
to comply with the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from
such code in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by Directors. The Directors are reminded of
their obligations under the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules on a regular basis. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

TEERER

EEFRAEEERABBFTAETREEE
ERANEHAUMEAEENEERN - ARFEZRK
MGEM E AR RIS 15 P8 R EIR T BI I
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EERTHMTAMEXEA2 UGN  BEEER
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4
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SR TTE - ARB N THIRBEESEEBK
LNGEM F AR B S 5.48 16 E B 5.67 5T 8y
RGWTFEABETHNEE - ARFIEMAEE

EFHBEEEHR 2R EECERESRE
F2018F3A3THILEFERNE EBFGEM ETM R
BIEE5.48 152 F5.67 6B MR 5 MFAER| -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board
has delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board
committees are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and five independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 57 to 62 of
this annual report.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan
Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze
Wai Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships among themselves.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 5.05A and 5.05(2)
of the GEM Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such
number of independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board, and at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board consisted of five
independent non-executive Directors during the year ended 31 March
2018, with three independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and the number of independent
non-executive Directors represents more than one-half of the Board.
There is a strong independent element in the Board to provide
independent judgement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from 16 March 2017, being the date from which the
Shares are listed on GEM (the “Listing Date”), unless terminated by
not less than three months written notice to the other party or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement
provisions in the articles of association of the Company.
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CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam
Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the Company and an executive
Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has the
advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors with
different expertise and will review the current situation from time to
time and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board
considers appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race,
age, gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for
the factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it
identifies suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board and will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and
make such revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing
effectiveness.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14
days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to
the meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters
considered by the Board and the Board committee and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to
the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board held 5 Board
meetings and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The
attendance record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 28
of this annual report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2017 annual general meeting held on 25 August
2017 (the “2017 AGM"), was held. The attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen,
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairperson of the Audit Committee.
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Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review, in draft form, the annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments to
the Board. In this regard, members of the Audit Committee will liaise
with the Board, the senior management and auditors. The Audit
Committee will also consider any significant or unusual items that are,
or may need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and give
consideration to any matters that have been raised by the accounting
staff, compliance officer or auditors. Members of the Audit
Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance
to comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the
Board, to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018. The attendance record of each members of the Audit
Committee at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 28
of this annual report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with
matter by way of circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

— reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the
engagement of BDO Limited in respect of the audit of financial
statements of the Group and perform agree-upon procedures
for the interim and quarterly results announcements;

— discussed with the Company’s auditor the audit planning;

—  reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the related results announcement, documents and other
matters or issues raised by the Company’s auditor and made
recommendation to the Board the re-appointment of the
Company's auditor;
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— reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the
engagement of external consultants in respect of the provision
of enterprise risk assessment services and assistance in drafting
Environmental, Social and Governance report;

— discussed and confirmed with the management the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and made
recommendation to the Board; and

—  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2017 and corporate governance
related matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and is of
the opinion that such consolidated financial statements complied with
the applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules, other
applicable legal requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21
February 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely Ms. Sze Tan Nei
with Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policies and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members
of senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2018. The attendance record of each members of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 28 of this
annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following work:

— discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

— made recommendations to the Board on changes to the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors by
providing the 13th month bonus.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung
and Mr. Wong Yat Sum with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will take
into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
March 2018 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, and made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of retiring Directors at the 2017 AGM. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page
28 of this annual report.
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND THE BOARD

COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL

MEETING

Attendance of each Directors at all the Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meeting held during the year ended
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31 March 2018 is set out as follows: Ke 7 EREH WM :
Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee = Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

EEXEE® ERZEE® REZEE® FHESES
EEMR = 28 = = BRAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 5/5 N/A 11 N/A iVAl
REERL(EE) 5/5 @A 11 E A 11
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 5/5 N/A N/A 3/3 171
WS 2+ 5/5 i A 38 A 3/3 11
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
LR EE S A 5/5 i i A i A 11
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
M8 fa %5 A& 5/5 i A3 A i A 11
Independent non-executive Directors
BUKHITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5/5 6/6 11 3/3 11
RBRETE 5/5 6/6 11 3/3 11
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 5/5 6/6 N/A 3/3 171
EIEAE LA 5/5 6/6 i A 3/3 11
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 5/5 6/6 i7Al N/A iVAl
5 B 58 o A 5/5 6/6 1/1 i A 11
Mr. Wong Yat Sum 5/5 N/A 11 N/A 11
s5—-O%AE 5/5 i A 1/1 A 11
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 5/5 6/6 N/A N/A 11
PR R B o A 5/5 6/6 i A TiEH 1/1




DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
The Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory and statutory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company also plans to provide briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge
and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2018 to the Company. Training record of each Director
received for the year ended 31 March 2018 is summarised below:

Name of Director
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Type of Training

E=pnE EZIER
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) KRBT (E/E) B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M FH e 22+ A B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah RS & B
Mr. Sze Wai Lun Me 18 fl %K A& B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REBEREE B
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEELE A B
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung B & B
Mr. Wong Yat Sum mELEE AB
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR 4 2 o A B
Notes: B 5

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to A HEXBAERESRERCET AT R &

directors’ duties and corporate governance ez N HEHe
B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory changes B BN EEETEEREZ2HRE BT

and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties

K& AR
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (compr

the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018, by band is set out

below:

Remuneration Band
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Nil = -
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 17 71,000,000 % 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7t -1,500,0007% 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

1,500,001 7% 7£—2,000,0005% 7T
2,000,001 7% 7c 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7% 7£ 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 7% 7£-3,500,0007% 7T
3,500,001 7% 7T 4,000,000 7T
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be deposited to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2702,
27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

IR R A
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REARNFABMERADAFSSE NEZEX
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, there are no provisions allowing
Shareholders to propose new resolutions at the general meetings
under the articles of association of the Company or the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Board or the company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite
2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
by post at Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung
Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the
contact information as provided on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the articles of association of the
Company since the Listing Date and up to date version of the articles
of association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and oversees such systems
on an ongoing basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of
these systems of the Group is conducted at least annually. The scope
of such review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are designed to managing risks rather
than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and
the Board) on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group's risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of
the structure are summarized below:
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Role Major Responsibilities AR FTERSE

Board — determines the business strategies and EZ& — ErFAEBEZEBERER

Audit Committee

objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks
it is willing to take in achieving the Group'’s
strategic objectives;

oversees management in the design,
implement and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

oversees the Group's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and ensures the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

reviews the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover
all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group
annually, and the risk management and the
internal controls in place to address those
risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the
Group to ensure that the management of
the Group has performed its duty to have an
effective systems. The discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function
and to rectify any weaknesses that may be
revealed from time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the Group’s management’s
response to these findings;
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Management — designs, implements and ongoing assesses
the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems;

— gives prompt responses to, and follow up
the findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the
Board, on Audit Committee’s initiative or
raised by the external risk management and
internal control review advisor(s);

—  provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control
systems;

Risk Owners — ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk
is managed appropriately; and

— responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged enterprise risk management
advisor to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management system for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

Control — a set of standards, processes and structures
Environment that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

Risk Assessment — a dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the
Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.
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Control Activities —  actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

Information and — internal and external communication to
Communication provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring — ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of
internal control is present and functioning.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

Identification — identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

Evaluation — analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management — consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed a review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems, including, but not limited to, (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks and the Company'’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, (ii) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems, (iii) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee and the
Board which enables them to assess control of the Company and the
effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company'’s processes for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules
compliance, and concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate for the year ended 31
March 2018. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review
covers the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their
attitude against internal control of the Group.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

—  transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.
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— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects
themselves to minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

— confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company
when communicating with external parties such as the media,
analysts or investors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the
view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to
review at least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-T,
has been appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 13
June 2016. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is
Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director and the compliance officer of
the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Pursuant to Rule 5.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Sze Tan Nei, who
is also an executive Director, was appointed as the compliance officer
of the Company on 20 June 2016. For her biographical information,
please refer to the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the total fees in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company, are set out as follows:
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Services rendered Fee paid/payable
R A% 38 Bl et ENEA
HK$'000
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Audit services: Bt R -
—  Annual audit for the year ended — HE18F3A3NHILEFEZF
31 March 2018 e 560
Non-audit services: B R -
—  Perform agree-upon procedures for interim — BMABRFEEEAETROBE
and quarterly results announcements R 180
Total Gy 740




DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s management will
provide information and explanation to the Board to enable it to
make informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 86 to 91 of this annual report.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report published
by Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) presents
the efforts and achievements made in sustainability and social
responsibility by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “we"). The ESG Report details the performance of the
Group in carrying out the environmental and social policies and
fulfilling the principle of sustainable development.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report covers the environmental and social performance of
the Group’s business for the period between 1 April 2017 and 31
March 2018 (the “Year”). The environmental key performance
indicators (“KPI"”) as disclosed in the ESG Report are based on the
performance of the Group’s principle office and fleet vehicles for the
Year. For details of corporate governance, please refer to the
corporate governance report on pages 20 to 39 of this annual report.

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide")
under Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has complied
with the “comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Stakeholder Engagement

The engagement of our employees from different departments of the
Group helps us recognize our sustainability performance. The
diligently collected and carefully analyzed data underscores not only
the Group'’s sustainable initiatives for the Year, but also the Group’s
short-term and long-term sustainability strategy. The Group will
continue to increase the involvement of stakeholders via constructive
conversation with a view to charting a course for long term prosperity.

Information and Feedbacks

Your opinions are highly valued. If you have any queries or
suggestions, please feel free to contact the Company:

Email:
Address:

ir@winsongrouphk.com

Suite 2702, 27/F,

Tower 2, Nina Tower,

8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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CARE FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

It is nowadays widely-recognized that business operation is
indisputably linked to our environment through a variety of ways. The
Group is also aware of the impacts on the natural environment caused
by its businesses therefore we are dedicated to adopting an effective
environmental management system, as well as carrying out an
assortment of measures with respect to emission control, waste
management and resources conservation.

Air Emission

Pollution including air and water pollution could cause detrimental
impacts on the environment, as proved by lots of real examples in
different industries. The Group thus strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations such as Air Pollution Control Ordinance and
Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance. The Group's daily office operation
does not generate any water pollutants, but our fleet vehicles which
includes trucks and private cars owned by the Group in supporting its
environmental hygiene and related services, is the main source of air
emission of the Group.

Air pollutants emission from the use of vehicles during the Year:
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Types Weight (g)
B EE(®R)
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AAHINO,) 1,126
Sulphur oxides (SO,) W&t (S0, 2
Particulate Matter (PM) $8F UKL (PM) 73

Apart from air pollutants, greenhouse gas is another major type of air
emission of the Group. Our fleet vehicles release not only pollutants,
but also greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,)
and nitrous oxide (N,0O). Besides, the operation of our principle office
will also directly and indirectly emit greenhouse gas through water
and sewage treatment, use of electricity and disposal of paper to
landfill.
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Greenhouse gas emission during the Year:

AEENREREBHME -

Types Weight (tones CO,)
BE EE (B Co,)
Total emission B E 322
Direct emission (Scope 1) BEEERER) 284
Indirect emission (Scope 2) MEBEM(FEE2) 27
Indirect emission (Scope 3) MEBEM(HBES3) 1
Intensity (emission/million Hong Kong dollars of revenue)  ZZ (HEi, /W B &4 1) 0.63

Recognizing the impacts of greenhouse gases on global warming and
climate change, the Group has been committed to controlling its
carbon footprint through a number of measures including the
reduction of paper consumption and energy conservation (For details,
please refer to “Waste Management” and “Energy and Water
Conservation”).

Waste Management

In addition to air emission, disposal of solid waste is another type of
emission of the Group to which it puts particular attention. Office
operation is always essential in supporting the main business of the
Group, which will generate both hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. During the Year, the non-hazardous waste as disposed of from
our principle office consists mainly of paper and daily garbage
discarded by staff. On the other hand, hazardous waste was also
generated which includes a number of pieces of toner cartridges, light
bulbs and a charger. As the Group was not involved in product
manufacturing and processing, no packaging materials were used and
no waste associated with packaging was generated during the Year.

Details of waste disposal during the Year:
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zE
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Non-hazardous waste mEREY) 4.1 0.09
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Amount Intensity
(pieces) (pieces/office staff)
BE
BE(E (B SEREE8TI)

Hazardous waste' BEED
Toner cartridge 2a 25 0.54
Light bulb B 24 0.52
Charger FTERS 1 0.02

To appropriately handle the waste generated, the Group strictly
conforms to the laws and regulations regarding waste management
such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, and works with a qualified
waste collection company so as to ensure both the non-hazardous
and hazardous waste are treated properly. In an effort to cut down
on waste, we encourage our employees to avoid the use of disposable
and non-recyclable products, and to use refillable stationeries instead
of one-off stationeries. Besides, we advocate the use of
environmentally-friendly materials where appropriate, for instance, to
print internal documents with recycled paper.

Paper recycling and reduction in usage also play a vital role not only in
waste reduction, but also the alleviation of global warming. The
Group implements the policy of double-sided printing and copying
and disseminates information by electronic means whenever possible
to reduce the consumption of paper. Recycling bins are also available
for staff to recycle used paper and paper products. We aim to lower
the amount of waste discarded to landfill and hence reduce carbon
emission.

1 Weight of hazardous waste was not measured or provided by the qualified waste
collection company.
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Energy and Water Conservation

The use of energy and water is unavoidable in office operation
thereby the Group spares no effort in managing its energy and water
consumption. During the Year, the burning of fuels for vehicles and
the use of electricity were the major sources of energy consumption
of the Group, which led to a total energy consumption of 1,075
MWh, while the average consumption per million Hong Kong dollars
of revenue was 2.12 MWh.

Energy Consumption
by Types

BREBE D NREFERE
BHEA
ENEA

Use of vechicles
1,025 L

(95%) @ Electricity Usage

In consideration of the potential impacts of energy consumption to
the environment, we have shouldered the burden of energy
conservation through the implementation of energy-saving measures.
As part of our many initiatives, we require the temperature of our
office to be maintained at an energy-efficient level, which is set at
between 24°C-26°C. We have installed energy-saving fluorescent
tubes and high-performance electrical equipment and always remind
our employees to switch off lights and electronic equipment when
not in use. To optimize the efficiency of fuel consumption for vehicles,
checkups and maintenance are periodically performed in an attempt
to maintain the optimal condition of our vehicles. By practically
improving energy efficiency and reducing consumption, we strive to
minimize our carbon footprint in the office operation.

Adding to energy usage is water consumption. During the Year, the
Group's principle office has consumed in total 18m? and on average
0.39m>/office staff of water. As water is a precious natural resource,
the Group believes that everyone shares the responsibility to adopt a
sustainable use of water resources. Therefore, we encourage our
employees working in the principle office to use resources only when
justified. We also work to prevent wastage of water by installing flow
restrictors and spray nozzles wherever possible, reminding employees
to turn off the faucet tightly and fix dripping taps immediately once
discovered.
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Environmental Management System

As a way to make emission control, waste management and resources
conservation manageable, we have adopted an environmental
management system which is certified to ISO 14001. The
Environmental Protection Committee (EPC), which serves to oversee
the environmental management of the Group and maintain close
collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce,
continues to ensure the management system operates effectively and
to promote sustainable development within the Group. Under the
guidance of EPC, potential negative environmental impacts during
operation are continuously assessed so that corresponding solutions
can be implemented.

The Group fully understands that the provision of environmental
hygiene and related services has direct impacts to the environment,
thus the environmental management system was also designed to
minimize possible impacts of our service which helps our clients, when
using our service, reduce their environmental impacts. For instance,
we advocate the use of work methodologies with lower level of
harmful chemicals in detergent and pesticides. By sticking to local
laws and regulations such as Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
Waterworks Ordinance, our on-site employees are also required to
follow standard water pollution control procedures such as the
dilution of wastewater before discharge, in a bid to minimize impacts.

As part of the comprehensive management system, training such as
introduction to environmental ordinances and measures pertained to
wastewater discharge and courses about the impacts of climate
change on outdoor hygiene works were provided to our employees
during the Year.

ESTABLISHMENT OF AN EXCELLENT TEAM

Human resources are the foundation hence the most valuable asset of
the Group, thus building a reliable, efficient and productive team is of
paramount importance of the Group. We have established a
comprehensive human resources policy, taking care of the
employment, remuneration, development as well as the rights and
welfare of our employees.
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Employment

The Group highly focuses on recruiting talents as it is our conviction
that employing suitable persons is of ultimate importance to the
business’s thriving development. We strictly abide by local labor laws
and regulations regarding compensation, benefits, dismissal, working
hours and rest period, such as the Employment Ordinance and
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. Throughout the whole
recruitment process, a non-discrimination approach is put in place
that the Group also employs people with disabilities without any
discrimination (For details, please refer to “Contribution to the
Community”).

Besides, the Group stringently prohibits the employment of child
labour through identity and age verification such as ID card check. To
avoid forced labour, employees are required to enter into the labour
contract clearly stating their duties and responsibilities before the
official commencement of work. Overtime work is on a voluntary
basis to further prevent forced labour and overtime pay will be made
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. For resigned
employees, we are also committed to paying outstanding wages on
time.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has employed in total 2,101
employees, the total workforce by gender and employment type are
as follows:

636
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@ Female
1,465
(70%)

@ Part-time

@ Permanent
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Welfare and Benefits

The Group is responsible to assure all our staff of the statutory rights
and welfare and is pleased to provide employees with extra benefits
so that they can achieve maximum satisfaction from working in the
Group. We offer our employees a competitive remuneration package
that discretionary bonus is also provided based on their individual
performance and the Group’s financial performance. Apart from
statutory holidays, our employees can also enjoy different types of
leave, including annual leave, sick leave, casual leave, compassionate
leave and maternity leave. As an appreciation for the contribution and
dedication of long-serving employees, long service award will be
presented.

The Group believes that two-way communication is essential to
employee engagement that brings job satisfaction, high productivity,
and low turnover rate. Staff Welfare Committee was thereby set up
to provide proper channels for quality communication between
employees and management. In order to foster team spirit, we have
organized several recreational activities during the Year, such as
Chinese New Year dinner and listing celebration activity. Furthermore,
the introduction of casual wear day every Friday and the birthday
leave also represents the consistent endeavor of the committee in
providing a friendly workplace. During the Year, the Group was
awarded the Caring Employer for the year of 2017, as recognition of
our care to our employees.

Career Development

In order to maintain the competitiveness of our employees and
establish an excellent team, we review our employees’ performance
regularly and provide recommendations on their training needs and
career development during the performance appraisals. Promotion
opportunities are provided so that employees can find their career
paths within the Group. Our promotion is executed on a fair and
open basis that employees’ character, ability and performance at work
are taken into consideration, while any forms of discrimination on
grounds of gender, race, skin colour, age, religion and nationality are
intolerable.
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Nurturing Talent and Succession Planning

To enrich our employees’ experience and industry knowledge, the
Group provides orientation and internal training to employees in a
targeted, systematic and forward-looking approach. During the Year,
we have provided training on professional skills needed for daily work
to our employees who were involved in environmental hygiene and
related services and airline catering support services. Besides, training
on different topics such as information technology and system
application, environmental protection, ISO implementation and
workplace safety were also provided to employees from different
departments. The Group has also trained employees at the supervisory
and management level so as to strengthen its business management.

In addition, we encourage our employees to achieve their personal
learning goals through independent learning by subsidizing them to
join external training. Employees are also encouraged to attend
external talks and seminars to enrich their knowledge in discharging
their duties.

PROTECTION FOR HEALTH AND SAFETY

Unhealthy conditions and injuries can affect the productivity of
employees which results in losses to the Group. Thus, the Group sees
work safety and employees’ health as an integral part of its
sustainable development and always puts priority on the protection
for employees’ health and safety.

Safety Management System

A comprehensive work safety management and supervision system is
vital for enhancing safety performance. We strictly comply with local
laws and regulations regarding occupational health and safety, such
as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Dangerous Goods
Ordinance and Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance, when
implementing our safety management. Our safety management
system is certified to the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series (OHSAS) 18001, which is an internationally-recognized
standard. The Safety Committee, which oversees the safety
management of the whole Group, is involved in promoting
occupational health and workplace safety to our employees and
conducting periodic review on workplace safety and occupational
health measures. Externally, the Group is also a member of the Green
Cross Group organized by the Occupational Safety and Health
Council.
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Support of Safety Workplace

In addition to providing workplace safety guidelines to our employees,
workplace safety inspection is conducted regularly to identify the
hazards associated with activities of each process and evaluate the
risks associated with the hazards identified. In response to the risk
evaluation result, preventive and protective measures are
implemented. Apart from providing personal protective equipment to
our employees whenever necessary, safety briefing and training
courses are also held to raise their awareness of workplace safety and
to ensure the efficiency of the personal protective equipment for
protecting our employees. In order to minimize the risk associated
with occupational health and safety, some employees are required to
obtain relevant certificates through completing courses such as height
safety training course so that they are knowledgeable about the job-
related protective measures.

Accident Handling Scheme

Our employees are subject to work-related accidents and injuries
given the nature of our service despite that protective measures have
been implemented. In case there is work-related accident, we conduct
a detailed analysis for the cause of injuries and implement measures
to improve or rectify the issues. We continuously monitored the
improvement measures and our employees have participated in fire
drills to minimize the possibility of accidents.

OPTIMIZATION OF OPERATIONS

As a high-end service provider, quality, reliability and safety of our
service are keys to our success. The Group never spares itself in the
pursuit of excellence in its operations and service through the
management of its supply chain, service quality and the provision of
customer services.

Supply Chain Management

The Group pays careful attention to the management of the entire
supply chain by sticking to the commitment of sustainable
development. During supplier and sub-contractor selection, a
balanced judgment is made by considering a plenty of factors,
including their environmental performance. Emphasis is laid especially
on the aspects of environmental protection, quality as well as health
and safety, where suppliers with certification of ISO 14001, ISO 9001,
OHSAS 18001 or other accreditation will be given preference during
selection.
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After supplier selection, we continuously evaluate our suppliers and
sub-contractors in regard to raw materials and service quality,
reliability, environmental performance and occupational health and
safety as well as timely delivery to minimize the relevant risk. We also
take green purchasing principle into consideration. Besides, the usage
of material is constantly evaluated to avoid overstocking and
squandering resources.

Service Quality

Service quality is one of our major concerns as we aim at providing
the best quality service to our clients. The Group places great
emphasis on quality control and our quality management system has
been certified to ISO 9001. Our employees will regularly check the
quality of service performed, which include service delivered by both
the Group’s employees and third party service providers, to record
occasions of substandard performance for follow-up actions.

The Group is also committed to protecting the health and safety of
our clients. For example, Winson Professional Pest Control Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group which provides pest management
services, is required to use pesticides registered under the Pesticides
Ordinance. This is to eradicate harmful pests while taking into account
the basic principles of public health and environmental protection.

Client Services

The Group is devoted to achieving the highest customer satisfaction
by providing professional and client-oriented service. To understand
clients’ needs, we conduct site assessment and communicate with
clients before service provision. Our management will hold regular
meetings with on-site employees to review operations in various
aspects so as to ensure that clients’ expectations can be met. Clients’
feedback on service quality, environmental and workplace safety
performance and application of material and tools is also collected as
a source for making corresponding improvement. In response to client
complaints, we will investigate the root cause and carry out remedial
and preventive action promptly. As acknowledgement of our excellent
service, letters of appreciation from our clients are well received.
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Business Ethics

The Group highly values the confidential data of our clients. We
strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding privacy
matter, such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. We are
committed to maintaining transparency, legitimacy, relevance and
accuracy when we handle the confidential data of our clients. Every
employee is required to enter into a confidentiality agreement which
forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary information
outside the Group, either during or after employment, without the
Group's authorization. We endeavor to protect the software system
from virus contamination and the leakage of clients’ information.
Trainings relating to cyber security and relevant risk management are
also provided to our employees to enhance their awareness of cyber
security.

With regard to advertising and labeling, the Group has designated
specialized employees to monitor notices, news and information in
the media in connection with tenders relating to environmental
hygiene and related services and airline catering support services. We
strive to ensure relevant local laws and regulations are strictly
conformed with.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain the Group’s integrity and justice, we strictly
comply with the laws and regulations regarding bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. To maintain high standards of corporate governance, we
fulfill our commitment through abiding by anti-corruption policies and
guidelines, such as those related to acceptance of gifts and conflicts
of interest. Related procedures and guidelines are available in the
employee handbook. Employees can report any irregularities to the
designated personnel and the Group will investigate the improper
behaviors and take corresponding remedial measures against the
irregularities. During the Year, the Group is not aware of any breach
of laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to any kinds of corrupt practices.
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group, deep-rooted in Hong Kong, plays an active role in
contributing to the society. In an attempt to build an inclusive society,
we have given employment opportunities for people with disabilities
to help them integrate into the community. Based on the disability
and expertise, we make appropriate arrangements of work for the
disabled employees. Appropriate types of support, such as targeted
training and emotional counseling, are always available when
required. In order to promote the disabled employees’ integration
with the community and foster social integration of able-bodied and
disabled persons, out-of-work gathering and counseling are organized
in their spare time and working time.

Apart from the provision of job opportunity to people with disabilities,
we are committed to good corporate citizenship and contributing to
the community by sponsoring and participating in a variety of
charitable organizations and fundraising activities. During the Year,
the Group has supported several charities, such as Children’s Hope
Fund Hong Kong Limited, The Mental Health Association of Hong
Kong, Children’s Cancer Foundation and Hong Chi Job Training and
Employment Service, helping and benefitting people who are in need
of care and support from the society.

In addition to charitable events, we are a member of “Employers
Consultative Committee” organized by HKCT to provide up-to-date
industry information to our youth. Our social commitment also
encompasses the establishment of the Social Service Committee
through which our employees actively participate in community
service and stimulate a corporate culture of caring and respect. The
spirit of service, as well as the care and love shared by the committee
not only helps to make a difference among the needy, but also helps
to foster care and harmony within the community.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue with its efforts in
supporting and empowering the community. It is hoped that long-
term values can be created for the society so that the Group can grow
together with the society and the people.
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and results achieved. Water Conservation
OB E R ENERRAEAR - REYEIR : B K RE IR K E R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous ~ Waste Management 42-43

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and

results achieved.
HAEEEERBEREEZEYN L

BEEEENHEERABAR-

JBE ¥ 5 12

A2 Use of Resources

BIRER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Energy and Water Conservation 44
by type in total and intensity.
RENESNEE R REZLEREFEE £ 4 82 IR KK B R
REE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Energy and Water Conservation 44
BREKEREE - B A B IR KK B R
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Energy and Water Conservation 44

and results achieved.

T BE R (8 PR AR 5t &I M PTIS AR

B RE IR KK B R
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BREMNEES ot 4} HR
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Energy and Water Conservation 44
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
it SREUGE B KR ER] BRI RE - B 4 82 IR KK B R
WA R 3R T K s 5t 8 PSR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Waste Management 42
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
BRmAABEMNEE R (ER) REY) &2
SEEEMIEE -
A3 The Environment and
Natural Resources
BRERRXAER
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Air Emission; Waste 41-45
on the environment and natural resources Management; Energy and
and the actions taken to manage them. Water Conservation;
Environmental Management
System
HMEBETHHRERRAANERNERTER REHEN EWEIRE:
ERMERFATENTTE - B 49 8RR KB
RIEEEER
Social
e
B1 Employment
U=
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age  Employment 46
group and geographical region.
BRI ERER - FikER REE 5 =4
BESBE -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group No relevant disclosure N/A

and geographical region.

BUER - FRAR KBS NEERKLLE -

for the Year

AERWEHBRFEFE  TER

B2 Health and Safety

REHEZE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. No relevant disclosure for N/A
the Year
ETEREEMIET A ASB R - AEZWEIAHEEFEH TiEA
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. No relevant disclosure for N/A
the Year

HAIBGEAXIIERH-

FEREUEEEREFE  TEA
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HRENER it 4] BER
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Safety Management System; 48-49

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

R FrRANBRERRL 2E R
AR MEBHITRERTE -

Support of Safety Workplace;

Accident Handling Scheme
TREBRRE XFTEN

TESG P BONRIRHIE

B3 Development and

Training
R R
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender No relevant disclosure for N/A
and employee category. the Year
RUFNEEERESNZIEERS L - AFEELEHBEREFRT  TEA
B3.2 The average training hours completed per No relevant disclosure for N/A
employee by gender and employee category. the Year

BB NREBERNE D BREBETK
XTI R

FERUEEEREFE  TEA

B4 Labor Standards

TR
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Employment 46
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
Hiull A BB EANEREARRE T EE
Noghl g T -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate N/A N/A
such practices when discovered.
M EZRERBAKBERARIFR i@ A TNE R
P ER Y A5 B -
B5 Supply Chain
Management
e EE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. No relevant disclosure for N/A
the Year
mriEE S HERHEE - ANERIWEEEREFEFE  TER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management 49-50

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices

are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

WA ERHEREEENED  AERTTER

BOMHEREE  ANERENNRTR

ERTZE-

e fE E 18
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KPI Description Chapters Page No.
HRENER it B BER
B6 Product
Responsibility
EmEE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped N/A N/A
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEICEXEMEHPREL T HEERIEH A3 A A
mABKKHE DL -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints ~ No relevant disclosure for N/A
received and how they are dealt with. the Year
EEARERERBORFHEEAREE X AFEULEEHKEFT  TEA
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing N/A N/A
and protecting intellectual property rights.
Mt EEERRENBEREEENE - i@ H A
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process Service Quality 50
and recall procedures.
RN E ST B2 R E MmO WIZFF © L&
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Business Ethics 51
and privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.
B E & ERHRIE RALBEUOR - EE3E35H
AR MEBRITRERT A -
B7 Anti-corruption
RES
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption 51
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPBAEBTASEEERETVEES RES
MBS FRREHBE RFRER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption 51

whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.

Al sEE R BBER

AR BREATRERE -

B8 Community

Investment

HERE

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Contribution to the Community 52
HIEREE - 6] £8 1t [@

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. N/A N/A
EHETHBEMBHAEIR - A5 N3 A
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Madam Ng Sing Mui (&EE#H) ("Madam Ng”), aged 57, a
cofounder of the Group, has been appointed as an executive Director
since 31 May 2016 and is currently acting as the chairperson of the
Group. She is also the chairperson of the Nomination Committee and
holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ng is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning, operation planning
and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. She has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group
and has maintained relationships with key customers since cofounded
the Group in December 1983.

Madam Ng is a certified associate fellow of the Australian Institute of
Management since September 1995. She was also awarded a Training
Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun,
both are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze's Holdings Limited, both companies
have disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (j&FHE) (“Ms. Sze"), aged 37, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20 June
2016. She is also the compliance officer of the Company and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sze also holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.
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Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology,
Australia, with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004.
She completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management
Systems Auditor by the International Register of Certificated Auditors,
by completing the Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to
international standards ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002)
coorganised by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency and
International Management Systems Associates Limited in October
2009. She has also completed the Environmental Management
Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course for ISO 14001:2004 &
ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the Occupational Health &
Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course
for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002 in April 2011.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle
Management Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of
services specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to
the position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and
remained in that position until she left such company in August 2006.
In August 2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the
communications department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being
a company engaging in property investment, management and
development until February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng, the chairperson of the Group
and an executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an
executive Director.

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (G%BF%E) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 62, joined the
Group in March 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on
20 June 2016. He is primarily responsible for the business
development and planning, control and management of the Group’s
business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelors of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an Executive Program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang
was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong
Management Association in 1986 and was appointed as an
“Occupational Safety and Health Ambassador” by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council in 2008.

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)
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Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang
was employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (now known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of environmental hygiene related services, as operations
manager in May 1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior
operations manager in October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in
February 2000 and his last position held was director in operation
department. Mr. Ang subsequently joined Best Result Cleaning
Services Ltd., being a company engaging in the provision of cleaning
services, as general manager in July 2000 and was appointed as
director and general manager in 2004. He held that position until he
left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (i {£1®) (“Mr. Sze"), aged 35, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of
IT development of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Griffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor
of Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (now known as
Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a
Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in September 2014.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp
International Limited, being a company which provides banking and
financial services as a securities operations professional in the
securities operations department of the operations and technology
group in April 2007. He held that position until he left such company
in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng, the chairperson of the Group and
an executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze, an executive
Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (F¥5K) (“Mr. Yuen”), M.H., aged
70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21
February 2017. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary
Design and Management from The University of Hong Kong in
November 2013. He is an Eminent Fellow Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, Fellow Member of Chartered
Institute of Housing, Fellow Member of the HK Institute of Housing
and a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. He has more
than 32 years of real estate experience from both public and private
sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land
and Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered
Institute of Housing (HK branch), past President of the HK Association
of Property Management Companies and past president of the HK
Institute of Real Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the
office of executive director of a real estate investment fund and has
been appointed as its non-executive chairman since June 2017. Mr.
Yuen has also served as non-executive director and chairman of the
board of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since February 2018.
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Mr. Chung Koon Yan ((#3][&H) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November
2000. He is a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chung is also a fellow member of
each of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since October 2003,
February 2007 and November 2014 respectively.

Mr. Chung is a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and has
more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Asian
Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and were admitted to
trading on AIM (a market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in
2005 but which have been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29
March 2017, an independent non-executive director of Synergy
Group Holdings International Ltd. (stock code: 1539), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Great World Company
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8003), the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (55 E3&) (“Mr. Ma"), aged 58, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Ma is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the
Australian National University, Australia with a Bachelor Degree in
Arts in 1983 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws in 1984. He was admitted
to the High Court of Hong Kong in July 1987 and is also a qualified
lawyer in both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is
currently a partner of Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is
securities, banking and commercial law.
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Mr. Wong Yat Sum (Z—1) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 41, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong obtained a Special Degree of Bachelor of Science in
Accounting from The University of Hull in the United Kingdom in July
2000. He has been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 2014 and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2013.

Mr. Wong has over 16 years of auditing, accounting and financial
management experience. He worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2000 to October 2007. From November 2007 to
November 2009, Mr. Wong worked for a private wood flooring
company as a financial controller in Shanghai, China. He has been the
chief financial officer of Youyuan International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2268), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since December 2009 and has been its company
secretary and authorised representative since January 2010.

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BRiE%E) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 38, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 16 years of experience in the fields of accounting,
auditing and compliance matters of listed companies in Hong Kong.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr.
Chan obtained an executive master of business administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has been a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since April 2006 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since March 2013. Mr. Chan worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his last position
held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan joined a private company as chief financial officer from July
2013 to February 2014 and was appointed as executive director from
March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated as non-executive
director from May 2015 to March 2017. He serves as an independent
non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise Holding Limited (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2266) since January 2017. He has also been appointed as the
chief financial officer and the company secretary of Lap Kei
Engineering (Holdings) Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1690) since February 2015
and January 2018 respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (&) (“Mr. Leung”), age 56, is the senior
manager — Operations & Development of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of sites operations of the
Group.

Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experiences in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance
Services Company Limited (now known as ISS Facility Services
Limited), being a company engaging in the provision of environmental
hygiene related services, as an assistant foreman. He left such
company in February 2001 and the last position held was site
manager. Mr. Leung then joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd.,
being a company engaging in the provision of cleaning services,
where he worked as assistant operations manager in February 2001
and was subsequently promoted to operation manager in October
2004, where he held such position until he left the company in
September 2006 and joined the Group in February 2007.

Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in
March 2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for
Cleansing Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained
an Aluminum Mobile Working Platform Training Certificate issued by
Origin Production Limited trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training
Association in July 2004 and held a Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate from June 2004 to June 2007.

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (ARE) (“"Mr. Chow"), age 50, is the Group
Senior Finance Manager. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group.

Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in
September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now
known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long
distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
October 2001.
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Mr. Chow has over 27 years of experience in accounting industry in
Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance department by
Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco manufacturer in June
1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January 1991 and held that
position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then joined Yue Po
Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides kitchen design
services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk in the
accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to account
officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he left
such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business
as an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998.
Mr. Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd.,
being a company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as
an accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a
senior accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a
company engaging in the provision of general construction works
from November 1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr.
Chow worked as an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then
being an exporter of camera and photographic equipment. He then
worked as an accountant in Suga Electronics Limited, being a
company providing advanced electronics manufacturing services, from
May 2005 to August 2005 and joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental
hygiene and related services and airline catering support services in
Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the
material factors underlying its financial position, as well as the
development and likely future prospects of the Group’s business are
provided throughout this annual report and in particular under the
following separate sections:

(@)  review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business
are shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown
in the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c)  the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report and the section headed “Environmental Policies
and Performance” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report and the section
headed “Relationships with Key Stakeholders” below;

(e)  the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
are shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report; and

(f)  details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to
the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group'’s businesses. The risk factors set
out below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses,
financial conditions, results of operations or growth prospects
differing materially from expected or historical results. Such factors
are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to
the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to
be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

The competition in the environmental hygiene services market is
intense due to low barriers of entries.

The Group continuously reviews its competitive edges in view of the
industry and will continue to strength its established position in the
environmental hygiene services industry by (i) building and sustaining
the reputation as socially responsible and high quality services
provider; (ii) increasing operational efficiency and service excellence to
enhance customer experience; and (iii) treasuring the business
opportunities from client referrals.

Operational Risks

Being labour intensive industry, difficulties in recruiting new workers
may lead to lack of capacity to obtain new projects which in turn
result in losing market shares and competitiveness.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, (i) Staff Welfare
Committee was set up to provide proper channels for quality
communication between employees and management; (ii) budget
(including manpower budget) is prepared for every projects; and (iii)
third party service provides are engaged to ensure sufficient
manpower.
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Increase in the statutory minimum wage may lead to high labour cost
and low profitability. Nevertheless, the management has remained
resolute in controlling labour and other costs so as to maintain the
Group's competitiveness and bolster its market position. Certain
measures are adopted to monitor costs, for example, prepare budget
on a project basis based on experience of senior management and
establish approval procedure for incurring additional costs to
accommodate for situations when additional expenditures are
required.

High customer concentration is also principal risk facing by the Group.
Top 5 customers contribute a large proportion of the Group’s
revenue, however, the top 5 customers are not obligated in any way
to continue to provide the Group with new businesses in the future at
a level similar to that in the past or at all. To balance the above risk
with benefits, the Group has established a relatively broad customer
base ranging from various government departments in Hong Kong
and subsidiaries of multi-national companies to tenants of various
premises.

The Group is also facing the criminal hacking risk. Ransomware
attacks target sensitive information including business proposals,
personal information, bank details, passwords, customer information,
which may bring catastrophic effects in business. In response to the
above risk, the Group has installed anti-virus and anti-ransomware
software and developed multi-layered defense mechanisms which can
prevent and remediate ransomware attacks.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage may not adequately protect the Group against
certain risks. Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory
pronouncements from the government by its legal and compliance
personnel, the Group is able to keep itself updated with various
regulatory requirements and complies with local labour laws and
regulations such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive work safety management
and supervision system is also established for enhancing safety
performance. In addition, the management will review the insurance
coverage on an ongoing basis.

Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 30 to the financial statements for the
financial risks facing by the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group's valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological
health of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's
awareness of occupational health and safety. The risk-free working
environment is guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System. In addition, the
Company also organizes a range of recreational activities so as to
foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain
the competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to
have an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in
order to maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and
subjectivity in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the
Company has established an evaluation mechanism with mutual
assessment by internal and external teams of professionals audits. In
order to achieve a set standard of service and customers’ satisfaction,
the work is monitored and reviewed in various aspects including
provision of resources, training, infrastructure and working
environment, with customers’ expectation as the foundation. For
services that are not up to high standard, remedial action will be
advised and implemented with continuous improvement follow-
through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual
evaluation on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect
to raw materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.

Further discussions on the relationship with key stakeholders is set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group’s Environmental Protection Committee (EPC) maintains
close collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce to
promote the concept of sustainable development. The Group's
determination is marked by the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

Further discussions on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group is in compliance with all the laws and
regulations that are applicable to the business operations of the
Group, except the non-compliance matter as set out in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Business — Non-compliance with Hong
Kong Government leases and occupation permit”.

As set out in Prospectus and the 2017 annual report, the Group has
made an application for a lifetime waiver from the relevant
government departments to release user restriction of the Property
located at Unit Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7 and 8, 10th Floor, One Midtown,
No. 11 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong from
industrial to office for headquarters or back-office operations. As at
31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual report, the vetting
of the waiver application by the relevant government departments
was still in progress.

While the waiver application is being processed, during the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Company relocated its head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong from the Property to Suite
2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, and the Property has been used
and will continue to be use as warehouse by the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018, together
with the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the three years ended 31 March 2017, is set out on page 164 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 96 of this annual
report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK1.67 cents
(2017: Nil) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2018, amounting
to a total of HK$10,020,000. The proposed final dividend is subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, 8 August 2018 (“2018 AGM")
and is expected to be payable on or about Monday, 3 September
2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 2 August 2018 to Wednesday, 8 August 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 August 2018.
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For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Wednesday, 15 August 2018 to Monday, 20 August
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
which is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM, all
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 August 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 94 of this annual report and
note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$58.4 million.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Ma Kwok
Keung, Mr. Wong Yat Sum and Mr. Chan Chun Sing will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from
the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less than three months
written notice to the other party or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service agreement. They are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less
than three months written notice to the other party or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of association of
the Company.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2018
AGM has any service agreement which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 57 to 64 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
under Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the
controlling shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2018 or at any time
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed at 31 March 2018 or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
below, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons.
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Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) or any of the directors
of an associated company (if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and
recommend the Board the remuneration and compensation packages
of the Directors and senior management with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted
to the Group and the overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option schemes of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted.
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the
Prospectus and note 24 to the financial statements.

An aggregate of 192,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.42 per share, being the offer price under the share offer, were
granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director and certain
employees of the Group. No further options will be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are as follows:
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RIBE R AR % E BB RS 8RB
ECEUNNE

Number of Shares (Note 1)

BRBEE (FF1)
Outstanding Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed Outstanding Exercise
as at 1 April during during during asat31 Price per Exercise Period
Category of participants 2017 theyear theyear theyear March 2018 Share (Note 2)
R2017& 20185
4818 RER RER RER 3B831H SR TR
SHEEER RTHE EBOE B P RITE THEE (Ft3E2)
Director
EE
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 — — — 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
B 0427  2017F3A16HE2027F3A15H
Sub-total 64,000 — — — 64,000
/J\E—|-
Employees
ES
In aggregate 128,000 — — — 128,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
At 0427  2017F3A168E202753A15H
Total 192,000 — — — 192,000
At
Notes: i sE -
1. Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option 1. BEERIA AHARENEREAEBFLED A ITEER
Scheme is exercisable. EZROHEBA -
2. All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only 2. FrERBEEAAMBEEMBEREFSRENBERE

exercise their options in the following manner:

(a) 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16
March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

ZHAANETRUTARTERS 2 BRE :

(a) 50% &) B % [ B R AT R 201738168 &
20273 A1SHEMTE &

(b) T2 50% #) B 5% i B8 i 7 7] 70 2018F3 A 16 B
Z20274 3815 EARIIT6E »
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisers, substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or service
providers of the Group and to promote the success of the
business of the Group.

(b) Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as
it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
director, consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider of the Group, options to subscribe at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (c) below for such
number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

(c) Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iiiy the nominal value of Share on the date of grant of the
option.

fERERTE

RAR G —IBRERE S ([BRET S
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

EERFTETBRAEREAQFHE
ARBZEzZRG HERORE
ZZEBRAXR

MR2018F3A31H ARAEEFTRETETH
ABRARBKEEAEEEZE(EXRE
REEIED ([FHREEEN]) BEXVES) 2 I’
B HEBRDREFTHEREZESLBE
M%%’XV*B%7&8“*,,\%DA$ 7] M B2
iR AR (BREESREES RBEK
fﬁuz;z:ﬂmm& ESB AHE 2 #E A
B) KRR IRIRE 5 R B E K HI 553521478
FTHEEZERMBIEGEM =R A 5.46 1%
B/ BEBESETRELFAR G A TANS
AAR R TzEmagoR BT -

N RERGNER

Number of
Shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held/ interest in the
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in Company
P #B
REWRG ERAFER
ESpE B REME HERGHEE HHEIEIH
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor of 450,000,000 75%
a discretionary trust (Note 1)
REETE LA 2RERMETEA
(BiFEET)
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 450,000,000 75%
iR PREEXHEA(ME2)
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 450,000,000 75%
ﬁ@1§ﬁ% EE*E1DE:EV_4/\/\<MTHE3)
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%

AR DA A (L)




(m

Notes:

Long position in the ordinary shares of

associated corporations

Name of associated

(m
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REBEIEEERNER

Number of
shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested in interest
iEs Ve X1
EEW s
Es=pE B EE SR B REME RO EA BHES
Ng Sing Mui Sze's Holdings Limited  Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
REENG MERERAR AR LB 2REER
METEA
Rich Cheer Beneficial owner 100%
Development Limited

EHERGR QA BEnlEAA
Sze Tan Nei Sze's Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 100%
B £ EERERER LA TREFAEEA
Sze Wai Lun Sze's Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 100%
I 12 @ MmERERER R A 2HEEAX=EA

B &

All the 450,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Limited, 1. Fff 5 450,000,000 8 B B B EEKIERER A8 B #H
which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting as the trustee of BE MEEKERERATHEHEREERAA(A
the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam HMEREEANTTEANEE MEFRKETARE
Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 BxLt(EFAVEREA)REHBRBR AR EA
January 2015. The beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze ZEEA)R2015F 1 ASHR YN EHEET - ERK
Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family EENSHMABRE(HP ) EIE BT £ MR
Trust and the sole director of Sze’'s Holdings Limited and therefore Madam Ng Tt -REBTTAMEKREEEINTETLSE AR
Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares KERBERAGNHE—ZE Bt BEESELHEE
beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Madam G REELLTHRANEEREERERER QA
Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and shareholder of Rich Cheer Development 25 ¥ B 8 BT A 450,000,000% BX D R HE B HEZS - R
Limited. BEZEITARAEHERBRAFNME -—EEMRE -
Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is one of 2. MHEZTARBEELIN LR - HARZETAK
the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is deemed or taken to KRGEEENZTHZAZ — EHit BEZHSLRBEEK
be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Bl BB ANEEREKEREEATBRBEGN
Limited for the purposes of the SFO. FfT /5 450,000,000 f% & 10 P #E B #E 75 ©
Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is one of the 3. HERESEAISEBLLINRF - HEMRELE A
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is deemed and taken to be KRGEENZHZAZ— Bt BEZBHSARHEE
interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Bl EwEAREEREEKEREERATEREAN
Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Fft A 450,000,000 % A% 17 = #E & # 2= ©
Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted and 4. HEBAESERRBREBA ARSI BRESSER

issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

MEHEREERBTERITRERZERETH
64,000 [ i 10 R B 2 o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company nor their associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors as referred to in Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 March 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in the Shares

7R M2 JB 7 8 A7 B 23 i)

Br b CPT# FE &SN 7201843 A31H » &
EENARAEBITHRAESESENHE AR
RARREABEENORG  AHERD RES
TPHEZLRBEES B EEME3521EH
RABGFEENEBCLHMANTRERSZEAE @ =X
BIREGEM TR A Es 465 AR EEETT
BERH 2 EMBITME AR R KT
E S RAE -

FE
K 8

MR2018F3A31H U TALTGEEERARQF]
FTEBATRAB)RARAIRMDKABRER D + %
BELRBEEFESANMNBEKIIFEI6CIKETE
M ERMRHEESORE

RBRONER

Number of
Shares held/

Percentage of
interest in the

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest interested in Company

¥ #E hA& R F

EHEWN W

RERER B HEME KR&#E Bkl

Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 450,000,000 75%
i RER AR A A BRERA

Rich Cheer Development Limited Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of the 450,000,000 75%

Sze Family Trust (Note)
L EREBR AR

RErEED  FRIERFKKERZEA IR

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Sze's Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze Family
Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By virtue of the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the

MEE
RERERATDNEHEETRAALEHERER AR
(BERRKRERNZENFE - HERKEE/RERK
ITRUNEZREFR BRIXREENIEAREEHFTRE)
MEMEEMEFEL L - ENEF LA TG EXVIH
B EUHBERARARARGEAXEENEXERERAF
EmBEENMARNDTHA#EZ -

B EXH#TEESI P2018F3A31H &%
WTAHMEBEAMALTGEESSIARREZENTR
AB)REERAERARQRRDKBEKG

HHEERBEESFRHBEKRIEXVEE2RID
HEXAARREERELRREES LT



provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and was {§
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 X &

of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF

THE GEM LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in
the information of the Directors since the date of interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2017 are set out

below:

Name of Directors

BEEgs
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ZHE
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Details of Changes
BEFHE

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, an
independent non-executive Director

RBREL  BIUFRTES

Mr. Chan Chun Sing, an independent
non-executive Director

RIRBRLE BYUFATES

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive
Director and chairperson of the Board

REfFZL WTESREFSER

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director

AR L BITES

Mr. Ang Ming Wah, an executive
Director

HEAELRL WTES

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director

mEREL BITES

He was appointed as the non-executive director and chairman of the board of
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1466), with effect from 1 February 2018
BEZARBEERARAT (ZARZRORERAER LT - RHK
5% 1466) MIFMITE RN EFTEEF > B2018F 2 1HRAE

He was appointed as the company secretary of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1690) with effect from 2 January 2018
BEZARYEIRBEZER)BBR AT (GZATZRO N AZMER LT -
B 5% 1690) VAR M E - B20185F 1 A2 H B AR

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,276,000 to
HK$3,439,800 with effect from 1 April 2018. In addition, she is entitled to the
13th month bonus

1% 2 E 7K F %7 $13,276,000/% JT 18 223,439,800/ 7T * B2018F 4R 1HEA
o fboh - A REWEE13E A 2 FEAL

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$2,624,400 to
HK$2,755,620 with effect from 1 April 2018. In addition, she is entitled to the
13th month bonus

18 2 B F %1 #2,624,4008 T8 £ 2,755,620 7T * B2018F4 A 1H B A
o fboh - A REWENE13E A 2 FEAL

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,352,400 to
HK$1,420,020 with effect from 1 April 2018. In addition, he is entitled to the
13th month bonus

1% 2 BN F % 1,352,400 ;L5 21,420,020 7T * H2018F4 A1 HE &
o fboh - R A REWERE13E A 2 FEAL

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$982,800 to
HK$1,031,940 with effect from 1 April 2018. In addition, he is entitled to the
13th month bonus

18 2 £ 7K 4F % $1982,800 7% JT i £ 1,031,940/8 7T © H2018F4A1H & &
o fboh - A RUWENE13E A 2 FE4L
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze's Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun (“Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into
the deed of non-competition undertakings (“Deed of Non-
competition Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own
and on behalf of all members of the Group) on 23 February 2017,
pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably
and unconditionally, undertakes and covenants with the Company
that during the period that the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling Shareholders
shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its associates (except
any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other than through
the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or
render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the
case may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the Group’s existing business activity and any
business activities which may be undertaken by the Group from time
to time and/or which any member of the Group may undertake in
Hong Kong from time to time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings have been set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance
with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The independent non-executive
Directors, having reviewed the annual declarations and made
reasonable enquiry, were satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR SUB-
CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (ii) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set
out below:
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FEEFRAEEERIEHE

HE018F3A3NBLEFE (AEBRETER
FPREREKZ  RiVAEBZZBHEFREISEN
FEIERIE A B DT :

Approximate percentage
of the Group’s

EREENBAES L
Cost of
Revenue services
W = PR 7% X 2
The largest customer SN 34% —
Five largest customers in aggregate AREP &R 59% —
The largest supplier or sub-contractor AP ERES D B — 19.6%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate T AL ER & H BE A 5t — 25.7%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers, five largest suppliers and
subcontractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any of their respective close associates
that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Messis Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), the
Company’s compliance adviser, save for the compliance adviser’s
agreement entered into between the Company and the Compliance
Adviser dated 14 March 2017, neither the Compliance Adviser nor
any of its directors, employees or close associates, has or may have,
any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of
the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities)
or otherwise in relation to the Company which is required to be
notified the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing
Rules as at 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had not entered
into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
that are not exempted under Rule 20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and has
continued to maintain such float as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the 2018 AGM. A resolution will be
proposed at the 2018 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

25 May 2018
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

|IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and airline
catering support and related services is recognised when the services
are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of
revenue by the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our Response

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
following:

o evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

o inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to the provision of services,;

o performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether
the recognised service revenue was in line with the expected

level;
o inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being

recognised with relevant the underlying documentation,
including service contracts, service records and invoices; and

o assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant
underlying documentation, including service contracts and
service records, to verify whether the service income had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number P06162

Hong Kong, 25 May 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # Z2018F3 A31H It FF

2017
2017 4
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5 FAT

Revenue I %5 7 467,513
Cost of services PR 75 pX A< (400,175)
Gross profit ] 67,338
Other income and gains E A A R M 2= 7 783
General operating expenses —BEERY (42,070)
Listing expenses EmRAX (10,387)
Finance costs R E AN 8 (2,389)
Profit before income tax R AT 18 B4 A0 % F 9 13,275
Income tax expense Frisfim X 10 (4,596)
Profit for the year and total FREBEMNREAA T

comprehensive income for the year BEAELEEAZE

attributable to owners of the Company W B 8,679
Earnings per share BREF 13

— Basic — &K HK1.90 cents

AL
— Diluted — HK1.90 cents

Al
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As at 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 14 37,188 35,709
Prepayments TE FRIR 17 292 =
37,480 35,709
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 11 30
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 16 100,180 82,087
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFIE ek
H i fE Y FIR 17 8,928 5,681
Tax recoverable B 12 493
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBEEEY 39,488 71,416
148,619 159,707
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables Z 5 I8 18 12,790 12,154
Accruals, deposits and other payables EetEBRH ek
H b & IR 18 30,495 42,568
Bank borrowings BT 19 17,533 39,643
Tax payable JE R IR 1,549 —
62,367 94,365
Net current assets REBEEFEH 86,252 65,342
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBER 123,732 101,051
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for long service payments REARTE & BB 20 9,076 8,553
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEE & 21 1,216 878
10,292 9,431
Net assets BEE 113,440 91,620
EQUITY =
Share capital A& 72X 22 6,000 6,000
Reserves & 23 107,440 85,620
Total equity DA 113,440 91,620

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

May 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
REEMN
Director

EF

FRNEZFIBEMEBZEAUBHTREE R
2018FSH2-HEEES S ARKERETE - I
HTIIEERREE:

Sze Tan Nei

it 73 48

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 & = 201843 A31 R ILFE

Share
Share Share Merger option Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
BRE

BE  ROBEE* SHHRE* wE REBAN et
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAT TAET TET TAT TAET

At 1 April 2016 2016547318 = = 20,927 = 7,829 28,756

Profit for the year and total 4 7% ) & £ &1
comprehensive income 2HE =SB
for the year — — - = 8,679 3,679

Issuance of sharesupon ~ NEBE S %
the group reorganisation 2477 % 5

(note 22(b)) (Mt 3£ 22(b)) 10 — (10) = = —
Capitalisation issue B EAT

(note 22(c)) (Fft 3% 22(c)) 4,490 (4,490) — — — -
Shares issued under public AR E R E

offer and placing BT ZBET

(note 22(d)) B 17 (B 5 22(d) 1,500 61,500 — — — 63,000
Share issue expenses BT — (8,833) — — — (8,833)
Recognition of share-based # 72 bA R 15 & E 7

payment expense 0 B — — - 18 — 18

At 31 March 2017 and 42017538318

1 April 2017 %2017%4R1A 6,000 48,177 20,917 18 16,508 91,620
Profit for the year and total 4 A% 1 & £ &1

comprehensive income 2HE AT

for the year — — — — 21,804 21,804
Recognition of share-based &2 LA R (5 & 1

payment expense SENENEET — — — 16 — 16
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 34 38,312 113,440

* These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set outin =~ * % 5
the consolidated statement of financial position. e

HBEEABIERE M BRI RTE
%8

o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z 201843831 H I F /&

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBEESRE
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %1 A1 52 A 26,887 13,275
Adjustments for: T
Interest income F B WA (3) =
Interest expenses FMERX 1,035 2,389
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMELRXKEZ
equipment (Yezs), B8 (100) 17
Depreciation we 3,748 3,448
Share-based compensation AR 7 B ALt 2 18 16 18
Operating profit before working capital EEESEBHHLEER
changes 31,583 19,147
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FER L1 h) 19 (3)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 MU S IE N (18,093) (8,073)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other AR RRIE - R e R E M FE
receivables W R IE 1 N (3,247) (72)
Increase in trade payables B 5P BORE N 636 1,325
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits and it E A ke N EMER
other payables I8 ORt 2) /38 hn (12,073) 9,196
Increase in provision for long service payments & HA IR 75 & 5 5 38 1N 523 910
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& (rR)/ FERE (652) 22,430
Interest paid EATFE (1,035) (2,389)
Income tax paid B FTEH (2,715) (7,592)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating &% EE (FiH) FEL
activities HE&FHE (4,402) 12,449
Cash flows from investing activities RETBFREBRSRE
Interest received 2 HF B 3 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BEMEK (5,237) (1,873)
Prepayments for purchase of property, plantand HBEEW%  HERHE 2
equipment TE FRIR (292) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME WMENMEREHE
equipment I8 110 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARSFER (5,416) (1,873)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

5 B4 W Bk e
For the year ended 31 March 2018 # %2018 3 A31H I F &
2018 2017
20184 20176
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cash flows from financing activities MEITEHMEBEESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITE RS REIE 246,865 260,019
Repayment of bank borrowings EER ﬁ B (268,975) (275,756)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITEBRATISRIE — 63,000
Share issue expenses RDETHEZ = (8,833)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTA) B
financing activities BERE (22,110) 38,430
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 22} ﬁ RBRESEEY
equivalents W), R (31,928) 49,006
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FEPREREBELE
of the year BY 71,416 22,410
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESFBEESE
of the year LR 39,488 71,416
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReRBESEENEH
equivalents 2
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHEHK 39,488 71,416
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £201843 A31H I FE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 31 May 2016 under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 16 March 2017.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is Suite
2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 34.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze's Holdings
Limited (“Sze's Holdings”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share
capital of Sze’s Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee
of a family trust (the “Sze Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is
a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze
Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the shares beneficially
owned by Sze's Holdings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 & = 201843 A31 R ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has applied
for the first time the following new standards and
amendments issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 April 2017.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised

Losses

Other than as noted below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to additional
disclosure presented in note 32 to the financial
statements. No comparative information for the preceding
period is required when the amendment was first
adopted.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 40

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards'

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
Based Payment
transactions’

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
(Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Leases?

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RME;
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Bt 7% 3R
(Continued)

BBRBEEN(ER

28 ) )

¥

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 EHEMEMARERZH T

but are not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Other than as noted below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the adoption of the other new or revised
standards would not result in significant impact on
amounts reported in the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KM EABUBREERN(FER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B R SR & ZE A @)
(Continued)

22 EMEMEERERZHT
RIEFTE R M B HREER @)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
financial assets as at 31 March 2018 and anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 in the future may result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets and is not likely to have other material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group
based on an analysis of the Group’s existing business
model.

The above assessments were made based on an analysis
of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities as at
31 March 2018 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date. As facts and
circumstances may change, the assessment of the
potential impact is subject to change.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RME;
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Bt 7% 3R
(Continued)

BBRBEEN(ER

28 ) )

¥ @

3

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 EHEMEMARERZH T

but are not yet effective (Continued) RIETERBUBRESER @)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with EEBMBREERFI55 — XK
Customers BEEFHEH Wz

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach
taken under HKFRS. The standard also significantly
enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 15 would not result in significant impact on
amounts reported on the Group’s financial statements. In
addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in future may result
in more disclosure in the Group’s financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to
be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

As set out in note 26, the total operating lease
commitment of the Group in respect of rented premises
as at 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$1,968,000. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 16 would not result in significant impact on the
Group's result but expect that the above operating lease
commitments will be recognised as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities in the Group's financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of other new or revised standards would not result in
significant impact on amounts reported in the Group’s
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(o)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$'000”) except otherwise
indicated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line basis to
allocate their costs less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of lease
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of lease
term or useful life

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term
of the lease.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
and directly reduces the carrying amount of financial
asset when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

4. EAXSFTHEm@m)

45 £ @ T B (@)

(ii)

(iii)

TR EEREER ()

HREHRENKFE
EEEHIEBEREELHEM
B REBENESERLE
EHREMEEREE MR
EERRZEEREERRR
ERMEUBRZMEFHRKRS
MEBREZEZRFE - TRE
ENEHEEBERRERT
PAFOOR - fisd & b & 22 {E ) &F
BERITAKE  AIREHES
BEENBERFEL M-

i & E AJ W o) < BE RO 3 A0 ] R
BRRERELENEHETEE
- AR EEEENERNE
BOo-EZEERBELRES
BHEREETSEEL EER
B I BB RO SH AR

THEE
AEERTERABELNE
MoBESBMAE - RAFE
SFABENERBENRER
FEFFE REHXATEN
TREBEMNRRAFERME
EMEEREBGERAGE -



111

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 20184F4E )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 it < Fft wk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £201843 A31H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4., ERESFHBEm

45 £ @I B @#)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

TEEEE)
REBHEAATEZZHMEE
BEHKAGEZSRABER
&L A ERN SR RE KA
AE-ERNSRAXNEBERE

R o

H&Z TP S
BEHNES

ERFE %
ERMNEEZRFEESREEN
TRABHERAERE RS
B EMEWRALMERARTZ
TE-BENEXREBERE
EXRAEBEAFHL(0ER)
¥4 HA ) 4E ARG 3R M R R R 3R
T WR IR ZFI = -

#EZTA
AREEBITHELD T ALK
WA EREMBRERZETX
) HER ©

AU ER
rEEEESHEEAB R
KB EREELHENER X
TREECHEZ BEZEER
BEBEAENEIVRTER
IFHEREER  RIFTEZS A
BEE -

TREBERBEANMIRE
TR - S E AR LT

=7
s ©



112

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 25 i % Bt it

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & = 201843 A31 R ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

4.8

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for sales of goods and services in the normal course of
business, net of rebates and discounts.

The Group recognised revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below:

(i)  service income is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For the
service contract relates to routine services, the
service income will be recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract terms as the work is
performed. For services that are provided on ad-hoc
basis, service income is recognised upon completion
of the provision of such ad-hoc services.

(i) interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the
asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@ the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Employee benefits

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods.
Liabilities recognised in respect of long service
payment are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. The cost of
providing the long service payment liabilities is
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration
of the eligible employees based on the requirement
of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's
retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. =E K€ 3B @)

AMNMEEREERERBE

4.11Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of these assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets’ carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as
a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4.14Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
under the heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.15Related parties

(a

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the parent of the
Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.15Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

4.16 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year is set out below.

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
in accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

5.2

5.3

54

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment losses on trade
and other receivables based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment losses
on trade and other receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional provision may be required.

Provisions

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting
from a past event, and that amount is reasonably
estimate, a corresponding amount of provision is
recognised in the financial statements. However, no
provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred
to operate in the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognised liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax and deferred
tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.
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5.2

5.3
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of performance,
is the financial information of the Group as a whole as reported
under HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two
operating divisions as follows:

(1) Environmental hygiene and related services
(2)  Airline catering support services

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
tax recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs, listing
expenses, income tax expense and certain other income
and expenses incurred by the head office.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 2 EER @
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BI£2018F3A31HLFE
Airline
Environmental catering
hygiene and support
related services services Total
RREHEER MHZEERK
HER®E XER® #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FER FER FTER

Revenue I &=

Sales to external customers HINMEFHE

Segment results DEPEE

Directors’ emoluments EEMe

Finance costs A& A

Unallocated corporate income and RO B A &l g A MBS
expenses, net e

Profit before income tax B P15 % A1 4 A

Income tax expense FrigBim

Profit for the year F R F

Segment assets DEEE

Tax recoverable CIEqEE e

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEY

Total assets BwEE

Segment liabilities HEHEE

Bank borrowings RITHE R

Tax payable FEAS B IR

Total liabilities BEEE

Other segment information HitpHEHR

Depreciation e

Additions to non-current assets IERENEEIE I
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

6.

DEE R (&

BZ2017F3A831BLLEE

Airline
Environmental catering
hygiene and support
related services services Total
REHER 25 & R
B8 AR 1% SRR 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T
Revenue Wz
Sales to external customers HINBRFHEE 432,619 34,894 467,513
Segment results D EPELE 30,970 3,977 34,947
Directors’ emoluments E5Me (8,896)
Listing expenses WX (10,387)
Finance costs B & B AR (2,389)
Profit before income tax % T 15 74 B i A 13,275
Income tax expense A5 85 X (4,596)
Profit for the year F N 8,679
Segment assets DEBEE 120,038 3,469 123,507
Tax recoverable A W B 7 18 493
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEESEEY 71,416
Total assets WEE 195,416
Segment liabilities DEEE 61,848 2,305 64,153
Bank borrowings IRITER 39,643
Total liabilities AEES 103,796
Other segment information HiopBEaR
Depreciation e (3,448) — (3,448)
Additions to non-current assets JETENE E NN 1,873 — 1,873
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £201843 A31H I FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For
the purpose of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8,
Hong Kong is regarded as the Group's place of domicile. All the
Group's revenue and non-current assets are attributable to
Hong Kong for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
being the single geographical region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue
from external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

6.

7 EE R @

AARBEREZERAR  AEEEBLE
AL E S - BLIRIE B S B 1% R & E R
FEHETHBERBEEM S - BBHR
BAEBATEN RNEEBHZ2018F &
20173 A31 B IEFEM A W= & IER
BEEHRBE—WEEE-

FE B A B DA PTIE IR 75 i ik 2 4K
e AKERAIINEEFOMAA REHIR
REE

18 5 15 A & B K 25 10% 5 A E 8 F P I
ST

2018 2017

2018 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Customer A (note 1) BEPAMEET) 173,798 176,065

Customer B (note 2) ZPB(KMIE2) 58,227 54,469

Notes: Bt 5

(1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the (1) HAEZE2018F K2017E3A3MBIHEENE

years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

2) For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue of HK$27,205,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$31,022,000 was generated from airline catering support services for
this customer.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, revenue of HK$27,701,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$26,768,000 was generated from airline catering support services for
this customer.

BEERBERBHOES -

(2)  H ZE2018%3A318 Ik F & U 27,205,000
BLTRERBEAERMBERLE S MK
31,022,0007% 7T 2K B [A] bt & 5 1% 6t &9 i 22 B 8K
X ER

H E201743A318 1L E - ¥ 727,701,000
BLTREBREAERBERSE mKkxE
26,768,000 7T 3R B [ bt & 1= it A9 i 2= B 8K
SRR -
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WX R EHMW AR W

Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene W e iR IRE G E RAEBERS U RN
and related services and airline catering support services EERITERBAEERWRA -
rendered.
(@) The Group's revenue recognised during the year are as (@) AEERFAERHWBZOT
follows:
2017
2017 4F
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue: Iz
Environmental hygiene and IR 5 BT A R AR 8 AR 75
related services 432,619
Airline catering support services MBI IR 34,894
467,513
(b)  The Group's other income and gains recognised during by AEBNERIERNEMU A KK

the year are as follows:

WU

2017
20174
HK$'000
FE T

Other income and gains: E At A R s
Bank interest income ]RATH B HA
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HE ¥ « BE & &E
equipment Fri5 U %
Sales of scrap materials BERLSHE
Sundry income HMIBBUWA
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FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEMRAE
2017
20176
HK$'000
FAT
Interest on bank borrowings SRITHE A S 2,389
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. PBRATS B AR A
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after FE RGBTSR BT &% (GEA) ¢
charging/(crediting):
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
Auditor's remuneration % E BN B &
— audit services — BT R® 560
— non-audit services — B RTE —
560
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ¥R & X (9 F E K A 14,647
Depreciation e 3,448
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - ME MR &S
equipment (M=), BB 17
Minimum lease payments under operating ~ t# RIEFRAKLHEEE N H
leases for land and buildings: SEBERF
— staff quarters —BI®ES 222
— office —mMAE =
222
Employee costs (including directors’ & B AR
remuneration): (BREESHMN) :
— Wages, salaries and allowances —TIT&8 HE kmih 299,676
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRET B 13,232
— Share-based compensation — RO AERNEE 18

312,926
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits for both years.

10.

FrEHiB X<

RMEFER EENSHERMEER

754 3% F 89 16.5% B R TR 845 -

2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAF 18 — BB RS 4,367
Current tax — (over)/under-provision in BEARIIE —BAFE
prior years (BERE), BETR 292
Deferred taxation (note 21) IR IERTE (M aE21) (63)
4,596
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FEMBAYHEIZEEMERTEN S %
profit at applicable tax rate: T 5 BE -
2017
2017 4F
HK$'000
FAT
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B0 B 48 13,275
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% 1#16.5% (20174 : 16.5%) 1Y
(2017: 16.5%) ERATEGHB 2,190
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ANATHR S B0 B A 5 & 2,037
Recognition of temporary differences T 5250 B i3 Ak FE RR A
previously not recognised S =R 137
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFE(GBEREE)
BHEIR 292
Tax concession HIEER (60)
Income tax expense FrigBim X 4,596
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 11. EERESREEEMHS
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EE=HM
Salaries,
discretionary  Retirement

bonus, allowances scheme  Share-based
Fees and other benefits contributions compensation Total

e MBREAL 37N LU 3 &
ne BHEREGESN SrEMR  ERMNEE &t
HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
THERT TER TERT TET THEZR

Year ended 31 March 2018 B Z2018%F3H31H

tEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Madam Ng Sing Mui RERLLT
Ms. Sze Tan Nei e/ 22+
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HAELE
Mr. Sze Wai Lun W {E 5 4

Independent non-executive BV EHTESE:

directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RER TS
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BEAELSE
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung BB A
Mr. Wong Yat Sum 'R AE
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR R B o A
Total Eh

Year ended 31 March 2017 HZ2017%3A31A8

LEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui REEZT — 2,947 138 — 3,085
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M2+ — 2,360 110 — 2,470
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HEAELAE — 2,363 18 8 2,389
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (& a5t 4 — 884 18 — 902

Independent non-executive BV EHTESE:

directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RERTE 10 — — — 10
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BEELSE 10 — — — 10
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung HRRELE 10 — — — 10
Mr. Wong Yat Sum 'R AE 10 — — — 10
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR R 2 o A 10 — — — 10
Total i 50 8,554 284 8 889
No directors waived any emoluments during the year B E2018F383MBIEFE  #i &

ended 31 March 2018 (2017: nil). EENEEMEE (2017F : &) -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1. EERSAEEEM € @)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ENBEEHF AL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2017: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2017: one) individual
was as follows:

AEBRfUsEaMe ALTHR Wi
(2017 : WAL BARARBES H
B4 &R XK sE11(@) ° 88~ —1{
(2017F : —fI) ALTHBS AT :

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T F& T

Salaries, discretionary bonus, e MIBIEL - B
allowances and other benefits H fib 18 K 600 558
Retirement scheme contributions ERET B 28 25
Share-based compensation ARGt B AR E 2 3
630 586

The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest
paid individual was within the following emolument band:

ENTLEXNFEERSFALHNFH
B0 N 51 B < [ -

2018 2017

20184 20174

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or any of the five highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

#H £20184F M2017F3A31H It &F
B ASEVERARANESN
FR— AN ESHFEE XN
B - A E DN A SN A KK B R A
RESIERBERME-
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S MM EERSREEEMNE @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Senior management’s emolument (c) SREEEMNE
The remuneration paid to the senior management of the FAENTAEESRERE(LEX
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) MsE11@) FTIREMEE B IN) 1 5B
above) for the year fell within the following emolument NRTE NS & E :
bands:
2018 2017
2018 20174
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A&
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T 2 1,000,000 % 7T 2 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. KB
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end MEPREBEBRIKNS 2
of the reporting period REARR S
— HK1.67 cents (2017: nil) per —EHREBIR.67F1U
ordinary share (20174 : f%) 10,020 =
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date for the year HEBHBREZIRMN ZEE 201843 A 31
ended 31 March 2018 is subject to shareholders’ approval in HIFEENKREBBREESFTREREKRER
the forthcoming annual general meeting and has not been FREG LERRIER > HAEE - R
recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2018. 2018F3 A3 AT EERAEAE -
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during HE2018F3A3MBILFE KA A E
the year ended 31 March 2018 nor has any dividend been IR EIRTMAARE - INE B 3hE BRE

declared since the end of the reporting period (2017: nil). TIRAEAI AR B (20174 : &) o
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective
periods.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the following information:

13.

BRER

SRANSBRENGBNEALAES
Al BRI B3 AT R A A T 4
BEH -

5 I 2 7R % 8 2 R Y AR U DA R R
=5 -

Eaui

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Earnings 2 F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7 2 & & A & 15 % 7 21,804 8,679
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
‘000 ‘000
T8 F i
Number of shares igvig Q=]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t &t & 5 i% £ 48 [ i 58 22 7 £
for the purpose of basic and diluted TmAR niET AR
earnings per share 600,000 456,164

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2018 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$21,804,000 (2017:
HK$8,679,000) and on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 600,000,000 (2017: 456,164,000) issued,
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017 does not assume the exercise of the
Company'’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of
those options is higher than the average market price for shares
for both years.

HE2018F3A3IBLEENERAER
BRTRIEARAEAE AEMGFRNEF
21,804,000 7T (2017 £ : 8,679,000 7T)
NEZE2018F3A31HILFEBHITER
A% &9 1 4 S 5 #2600,000,000 % (2017 £ -
456,164,000%) 5t & °

HZE2018F K2017F3A31HILFE -
RERENTEESRERMDFEHEME &
EZMETENSRE SR T &
BREITERRQ R M ARITERERAE -
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14. ¥ BERRE

Office
Leasehold furniture  Machinery
Leasehold  land and and and Motor
improvement  buildings  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
HE L1 AR E B
HEHE REF ET SEL RE Gl
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET THET TEL TFTHErT TAEx
Cost BA
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A 1H 1,970 34,572 1,886 8,688 9,363 56,479
Additions NE — — 357 871 645 1,873
Disposals & — = 6 (624) = (630)
At 31 March 2017 and R201743A318 &

1 April 2017 201744 H1H 1,970 34,572 2,237 8,935 10,008 57,722
Additions NE 1,041 — 1,082 1,027 2,087 5,237
Disposals HE — — — (675) @47)  (1,122)
At 31 March 2018 R201853 A31H 3,01 34,572 3,319 9,287 11,648 61,837
Accumulated deprecation ZIFE
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A 1H 952 3,405 1,297 6,650 6,874 19,178
Provided for the year FERNERB 295 997 190 934 1,032 3,448
Written back on disposals NHERER — — (6) (607) — (613)
At 31 March 2017 and R2017E3A31B K

1 April 2017 2017F4 818 1,247 4,402 1,481 6,977 7,906 22,013
Provided for the year ENEE 347 997 252 946 1,206 3,748
Written back on disposals N ERER = — — (665) @47 (1,112)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3H31H 1,594 5,399 1,733 7,258 8665 24,649
Net carrying amount REEE
At 31 March 2018 R20184F3H31H 1,417 29,173 1,586 2,029 2983 37,188
At 31 March 2017 R201743H31H 723 30,170 756 1,958 2,102 35,709
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15.

16.

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the leasehold land and buildings are
pledged as securities for the Group’'s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 19).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group used the leasehold land and buildings (the
“Property”) with carrying amount of HK$30,170,000 as its head office
("Actual Use”). The permitted use (“Permitted Use”) of the Property as
specified in each of the relevant (i) conditions of sale and government
grant; (i) occupation permit; (i) deeds of mutual covenant is (a) for
industrial purpose; (b) as workshops for non-domestic use; (c) for use as
prescribed by the government lease and the occupation permit respectively.
Accordingly, the Actual Use did not comply with the Permitted Use as set
out above and is in breach of section 25(1) of the Buildings Ordinance
(Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure to notify the Buildings
Department regarding the change of land use.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had made an
application for a lifetime waiver from the relevant government departments
to release user restriction of the Property from industrial to office for
headquarters or back-office operations. The vetting of the waiver
application by the relevant government departments was still in progress
as at 31 March 2017, 31 March 2018 and up to the date of issuing these
financial statements.

In December 2017, the Group had leased an office premises and the
Group's head office had been moved into the leased office premises. The
Group has terminated to use the Property as head office since then. The
Property was then used by the Group as warehouse.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

14. W% BERRKRE®@E

(@) M2018F K£2017F3A31HA - HELHREF
EEMIERLAEBRTEERAEEERZ
RITARE 2 TR (FFFE19) ©

R2017F3A31MB A5 EBFEREEER
30,170,000 TMHEE L R EF([ZWE])
ERENEE(EERAR] - EZHEBSEOY
& REBUT LR (VEAFTRIE (i) REFT
TImESERE ((BEREDHSRIAE@IE
A% OEEERRNIS  OBFHEE kL
RAHFAERAEORE Bt ERARITARE
FTEXFENELERSE  BERER AR
BHNEEFEMERBEASEONE123ERE
WG 5 2501) 5 ©

HE2017F3A31MALFE  ASEEREEH
BFEFIRERER R LB mEEAETE
REBREIENEENEAR G - BR20175F3
A318 - 2018F3A3BREZZENBHRE
FIZEBAE HARFHIESBRERFE L THE
AT -

R2017F 128 "EBRE-—BEHLAEWE -
WHRAEERNELBAEZEENREYWE -
At AEEERILERAZMERBERS
B ZMERBNBAEBRLERERRRE -

INVENTORIES 15. FE
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Consumables, at cost SHAE M GRRA) 1 30
TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EZ EWRKIE
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T 7T
Trade receivables g 5 WA 100,180 82,087
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. E Z FE WK IE (@)
Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for RMEFEE 85 EINKRIEY NS T
both years. (=
The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from 0 to ESRWFENEEHEREBBEN
75 days (2017: 0 to 75 days) from the date of billing. FORETISK(017F : 0OXKET5K) °
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice HERERER ENEZAHNE HEI
date, as of the end of the reporting period, is as follow: RIERE ST :
2017
20174
HK$'000
FAT
Within one month —@AAA 40,285
One to three months —Z==@A 37,098
More than three months =R®AMNE 4,704
82,087
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the due dates ERIHANE S EYRENRE DT
is as follow: LU
2017
20174
HK$'000
FAT
Neither past due nor impaired R 8 HA sk Rk (B 40,775
Past due but not impaired: B ERBE :
Less than one month past due wHE DR —E A 36,573
One to three months past due BB —E==EH 2,458
More than three months past due wmE={E A E 2,281
41,312

82,087
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

17.

Trade receivables of HK$54,922,000 were past due but not
impaired as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$41,312,000) related
to a number of customers that have a good track record of
repayment with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2018, no trade receivables (2017:
HK$7,061,000) was subject to assignment and charge
arrangement in which specific debtors are assigned to the bank
to secure the bank loans to the Group and no trade receivables
(2017: HK$16,079,000) have been pledged to banks to secure
the banking facilities of the Group.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

16.

17.

g 5 R W RKE m)

R2018F3A31H & 5 B W R E
54,922,000 7T (2017 4F : 41,312,000 7T )
EEafERARE HEZZERTER
THETHBNEAEERFPEH ERNBOEK
B AABEERE ZSHEHKIDAELR
BRE RACEEXTEEAEY %%
HEHRDAMEE2HERE - NEELEH
ZEEBBFETMERY -

MR201843A31H T EZE 5 K W HHE
(20174 : 7,061,000/ 7T) & 8 & & # i
ZHFRE  Ed BRRITEZECE
BUNSAEBESEITER MALEZS
JE Yo FX 3 (2017 £ : 16,079,000 7T) 2
HFERITEAAEERITHRENER-

%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ@%%
I

2018 2017
20184 20176
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Non-current: FERE :
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant & & - WE &R &R 78 R~
and equipment KA 292 —
Current: wE
Prepayments for consumables H 7% b B R FOE 90 35
Other prepayments H b T8 R IR 5,455 4,022
Deposits %4 673 1,503
Other receivables H 1th & W F I8 2,710 121
8,928 5,681
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18. EZ R HMENRE

2017
20176
HK$'000
FAT

Trade payables (note (a)) 2 5 e 5 IE (M5 @) 12,154

Accrued staff costs FEET B TR A 25,703

Other accrued expenses (note (b)) H b fE TR 2 (BT 5E (b)) 15,185

Other payables H b FE T 308 1,158

Deposits & 522

42,568

Notes: B &

(@)  Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. (a) RMEFE  EHEMNFBEBHUSTE -
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the HERSHA ERNEZAHNEFIENARE
end of the reporting period is as follow: BRE DT ¢

2017
2017 4
HK$'000
FHBT
Within one month — @ AR 12,003
One to three months —Z=={EA 129
More than three months =@AMNUE 22
12,154
(b) As at 31 March 2018, other accrued expenses mainly represented the (b) M2018E3A31H HMhEM X T2 E

accrued untaken paid leave (2017: accrued listing expenses and accrued

untaken paid leave).

19. BANK BORROWINGS

19. SRITER

Bank loans

RITER

REREHFBIE Q0174 Est EHAX RE
SAREREEHE®RY) -

2017
20174
HK$'000
FAT

39,643
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19.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2018 and 2017
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the
entire bank loan balances for both years have been classified as
current liabilities.

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors
of the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company considered that the bank loans will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out
in the loan agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in
accordance with the contractual repayment terms are
summarised in the table below:

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

19. 1T

I
T 18 # (&)

K& B R20184F &2017¢3ﬂ31 B & FT

BRITEFRHEREZREEGRK  FLm
BEEENEHBRTEREHREDER/R

BaE-

ERNAKEENT BRI RARIESFR
o RITAARATBERIE BRI AVER - K
RAEERR fEﬁEmH%ﬁ?ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%
et R EBER - TREMIZRS
HE T RITERD T -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Analysed based on scheduled EEE%’\TE%FE@B’J*Q
repayment terms set out in BRHETHD N
the loan agreements, into:
Within one year R—F A 9,099 23,824
In the second year REBEZF 1,421 7,385
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FE2FALF
(BREEEME) 4,494 4,378
Beyond five years FAFMNUE 2,519 4,056
17,533 39,643
Notes: B =
(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31 (i) T A RITE IS TTEE - R201843 A 31

March 2018, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates ranged
from 2.60% to 3.94% (2017: ranged from 2.60% to 5.50%) per annum.

(i) As at 31 March 2018, the banking facilities granted to the Group were
secured by the following:

(@) properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$29,173,000; and

(b) letter of undertaking and unlimited corporate guarantee executed
by the Company.

B RITEXAMEZEEENTHF260E
E3.94F (2017%F : N F2.60EE550F) °

(ii) 20183 A31H REBERNRITEER
THEIEER :

(a) 7N 85 [ B 45 BR T JF 18 £929,173,0007% 70
ZmE R

(b) ARBEILMNERGEE
& o

RS IPNCIE
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19. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) As at 31 March 2017, the banking facilities granted to the Group were
secured by the following:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

)

properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of
HK$30,170,000 and properties held by related parties;

unlimited cross corporate guarantee executed by a related
company;

unlimited personal guarantees executed by directors of the
Company, Madam Ng Sing Mui and Ms. Sze Tan Nei;

assignment of rental proceeds of properties held by a related
company, of which the director of the Company, Madam Ng Sing
Mui, has beneficial interest;

assignment and charge of trade receivables from assigned debtors
of the Group. As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of
HK$7,061,000 (note 16) of the Group were subject to such
assignment and charge; and

trade receivables HK$16,079,000 as at 31 March 2017 (note 16) of
the Group.

20. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

19. RITER @
B+ ()

@iy  M20179F3A31H  AEBEFORITEEH
TFFIEE T -

(a)

(b)

7N %5 @ F7 #5 BR 1 JF {E30,170,00058 7T 2
LEYA) Nk E

Bl ARB LR ERGIEERBER

ARBESTREFLLRENEL L
SRR A AR

ES&%% REFMENEEMRBRK
EP $’Ri§$£@§$ﬁi%ﬁﬁ

”ﬁéﬁ:

)m}

ERRHCAEEMEEERRENZ
SREMWFIE - R2017F3A318 K&
B E S ek IE7,061,0007% 7T (K &%
16)XHEEBERMLZAAR: &

AEERKR2017F3A318 (fE16)WE
5 & U8 3078 16,079,00078 JT °

20. REIBRH = B8

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Liabilities for employee benefit comprise: EERAEBGBRIE:
Long service payments accrual, classified RRGEEAER 2845

as non-current liabilities EREBEE 9,076 8,553

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is BEZEEFBIFEY AEBBAEETEBER

obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside
any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

THRIERE/RAKEEBERELASF
RBHNETREREXN—FERB -AXfHZ

R BRI %

EFREMTRF T RIR

BEH- jf?DﬁhzZIK‘i BRI BAE

BHFARENZTRE -

REE Y EIEE

EAEEARSEMHTAEREES -
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21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 2. EXEHEEE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements RABHELBTHBEACHERELHIES
during the current and prior period: EREHZFBNOT

Accelerated tax

depreciation

INEBLIFITE

HK$'000

AT

As at 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A 1H 941
Credited for the year (note 10) FERsT A (FF:E10) (63)
As at 31 March 2017 and at 1 April 2017 M2017F3 318 ER2017F4H1H 878
Charged for the year (note 10) F AR (Bt EE10) 338

As at 31 March 2018 201843 A31H 1,216
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. ®RAR
2017
20174
Number
Notes of shares HK$'000
(= BREE FTET
Authorised: EE
Shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.1B LA
)
At 1 April R4A1H — -
Initial authorised share capital iR VRS E
upon incorporation ETERA (@ 38,000,000 380

Increase in authorised shares ETE R AR 1 0 (@) 9,962,000,000 99,620

At 31 March R3A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: EBRTRHE

Shares of HK$0.01 each ERMEE.01% TH)

& 12

At 1 April R4R1H — —
Issue of one ordinary share upon R %172

incorporation — R LB (@) 1 -
Issue of shares upon the Group ~ REBEHB T

Reorganisation W15 (b) 999,999 10
Capitalisation issue of shares BRI EITRG (© 449,000,000 4,490
Issue of shareson placingand ~ ALE R AFEEET

public offer ) (d) 150,000,000 1,500

At 31 March R3A31H 600,000,000 6,000

Notes: B & -

(a) The Company was incorporated on 31 May 2016 in the Cayman Islands (a) ARRAAR2016F5A3IBRAMAS B E MK
with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 37 0 SE T BR 7N /A380,0007% Tt 0 4 /438,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. Upon incorporation, one nil-paid share BEREEAEZ001B T E@AR - Rtz
was allotted and issued. % BECENBEITRARBKRITES -
Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder dated 21 BB A2017E2821B 2 — R E =
February 2017, the Company increased its authorised share capital from ERZER AR AEERAEFRELREIN
HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of an additional 9,962,000,000 % & % T {E0.01 78 7T By & 38 A% 5

9,962,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. = £ 380,000% T 1% £ 100,000,000/ 7T °
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

23.

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) carried
out by the Group in preparation for the listing of shares of the Company
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, on 17 February 2017, the Company
acquired the entire issued share capital of Winson Group Hong Kong
Limited from Sze's Holdings for the consideration to be satisfied by (i) the
issue and allotment of an aggregate of 999,999 new shares in the
Company, credited as fully paid, to Sze's Holdings; and (ii) crediting as fully
paid at par the one initial nil-paid subscriber share transferred to Sze's
Holdings.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder dated 23
February 2017, 449,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
at par to the sole shareholder of the Company by way of capitalisation of
HK$4,490,000 from the Company’s share premium account.

On 16 March 2017, the shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. 150,000,000 ordinary shares at an offer price of
HK$0.42 each ("Offer Price”) have been issued through placing and public
offer.

RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group's reserves for the years

ended 31

March 2018 and 2017 are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 94. The
natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(a)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group Reorganisation and represented the difference
between the consideration under the Group
Reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries then acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative
expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the eligible participants over the vesting period.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

22,

23.

N )
MsE : (58)

(b)  BIEBAEBERADRRERGEM LMD M
BETHEBEEMA(EEEM])  K2017F248
17E| CARARAERERKEKEEESSES

AAKNEBEBHTRAEA  REBBEBOARE
EE&HQ?%G&@E%:.,\999999H§§)\9E§U7%Q§Q
RE AR BIFIAD ¢+ R (i) 1A i FC 4 A% 8 2 — %
ﬂ?ﬂi’i.@i{ﬁxmmﬁg/\ﬁxf WiZEEARY B
B Rt

(c) RiEH B AB2017F2A23A 2 —REEE
;9&;&;' & i E {B0.01% 7T 2 449,000,000 f%
TRREEBAARAKRD *FEEQZMK
4,49o,oooﬁ*m27§t&ﬁf*§§*ﬁ%$
HE—RRE -

(d) R2017F3 160 © A2 R B 17 1 B 32 BT GEM
£ 7 °150,000,0008 EBREBREEEER
0NBEBT(HEB)EBRERAAEER

e

i

AKE

& B A E2018F K2017F3A318 1t
FEZHEBZHFBE2INNEMEZL
EREZEHRAN - REFEEZEEREN
R

@ ARAZBROEEREZERTEBER
FﬁHSZHXZFﬂ%/*KIEEHjZK AIE %
TROEENEESD

) AEEEHFEHE I BEEEHE
A HESESHBET2HRERE
R EH B ARRAEE CZ -

0 BEERGBEENFEBHRERASER
SRERBERERER 2R
% o
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23. B @

Company VNN
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Share Merger option Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
(REtE8)/
ROEE EOREE BRERE = B 3% 7 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FETT FETT FET THETT
At 1 April 2016 7"20165F481H

Loss for the year and  F R EE N FE A
total comprehensive % & Ut 25 42 58
income for the year

— — — (10,729) (10,729)

Issuance of shares REBEEHE

upon the group BTG

reorganisation (FF5E22(b))

(note 22(b)) — (10) — — (10)
Capitalisation issue B AR BT

(note 22(c)) (B 7E22(0) (4,490) — — — (4,490)
Share issued under REAAZEE R

public offer and il & 1Tk D

placing (note 22(d)) (B 7E22(d)) 61,500 — — — 61,500
Share issue expenses & {7 3175 & (8,833) — — (8,833)
Recognition of share-  #& 2 LA B 1D A&

based payment AWM R

expense i 32 = — 18 — 18
At31 March 2017  R2017 %

3A31H 48,177 (10) 18 (10,729) 37,456

Profit for the year and 4 /93t F| & 5 A

total comprehensive & [ Y 5 458

income for the year — — = 20,945 20,945
Recognition of share- & LABE D A&

based payment BRI

expense &2 — — 16 — 16
At 31 March 2018  A2018%

3A31H 48,177 (10) 34 10,216 58,417
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
aid the Company in retaining key and senior employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 192,000. No share options
may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if
this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall
pay HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to
grant to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. On the same date, the Company has
granted share options to 6 eligible participants to
subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000 shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be equal to the Offer Price (as
defined in note 22).

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

24. BT E

()

BXRRBENBERESTS

MR2017F2A8218 » XRQ AR EK
M—IEEREFE(ERARES
AT AR AR AT &) - IR AR B E AT
BRERE A —BRHDEEEE -
ERIUNEEMHARABREARE
ExZEkmfES -

ER & B X AR S B R EE
BB BREETEmA 1T
B RE 1D EE £ R A 192,000 © i iR
BEX A RBEEMERETSRD
BEREGEEHELRE  TE R
o fo] B AR A o

RERSEEREASEEMAKE
RAZEMEBIFREEULAE
RAEIZEAARTES -

ERAREMNBRERALEBR
HBEARRAXMIETHERRE -

R2017%2A23H ° KA BB X6
HEBER2EEAREBEIRAAE
= AT B IR AT 8 3R B & ££192,000
BEHB- RE A KARMA6HEA
ERSEERIEREUNRES K
192,000 % P& 15 -

RERARAEENBERESET
BHZERFEBBREZRNDRBE
BEERAZER(ERALMF2)HEF -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

0]

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the
share options granted during the option period under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@) 50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or
after the first date on which dealings in the shares
of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Date”) to the date immediately before
the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b) 50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or
after the date falling on the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date immediately before the
tenth anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not
exercised within the exercise period will lapse and cease
to be of further effect. All the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall lapse
automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that
time shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

24. B ETHE &

()

BEXALHBE
(&)

REBEBERAFREEABREE R
BEERRARKZBERE/E T RS
REF AR 51 75 17 (2 10 B8 A 4 H3
RIB B IR AR 3% E A B R RS B
2 R R

Al B R RE S 8

(@ 50%#RiEE IR AR EE R BK
RT3 RAR ARG 2 BIRE

A RS 23 B B A0 1 B X2 P R 46
BEEZzEB(LEmBEHDHKZ
REZER LM AHRE HEBF
BHAlz B EARIMBE R 1T &

(b) 50%#RiE B IR AR E R B
BB AAR ARG Z BkE
ARETEME-—BEBFEBEE
B zBRE=EE ETHBE+
B F B ATz B HI 8 E BE A 17
{5 o

BEXRARAEEEREFEIETR
HeEREATAIEZE  RNITE
B MARITE ZBRESIBRT
BEBEMB O - ERXAHEEH
BT EIIE T IRE 2T B B
AR EEIRE IR E MR BB AR K
AT (AR RITHEE RR) -

RERAREBEERNBERESTSER
A B B R R 1T (68 O B AR AR S
BEBULRBERAREENE
PRt Bl FIT(E -



146

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED 7Kk M #5 Ji¢ 75 ¥ A B 2 W)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit ik

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # Z2018F3 A31H It FF

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. BIREEETE @)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BEXRPHBEEIHBRESTSE
(#])
The following tables disclose details of movements of TREBEREBEBEAAAZENER
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option BtEFR o EREE S S
Scheme:
Year ended 31 March 2018 B 220183831 HIEFE

Director 5=
Ang Ming Wah it BR 2

Employees B8
In aggregate &

b1l

Total et
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2017

24. BB REST & ()

() BEXRLFEBENBRETS

(&)

B 220173831 ILFE

Number of share options

S A
Expired/
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Share 1 April during during during 31 March
option type 2016 the year the year the year 2017
FA
FEARiE  P20164 B,/ P20174F
2R 481B FARE FARTRE T8 3A31H
Director ==
Ang Ming Wah JteA Tranche 1 — 32,000 — — 32,000
F£—#
Tranche 2 — 32,000 — — 32,000
FE 4t
Employees B8
In aggregate SE Tranche 1 — 64,000 — — 64,000
E—#
Tranche 2 — 64,000 — — 64,000
%=t
Total @t — 192,000 — — 192,000

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO

RIEE R AR % E A fE R AER &R

Share Option Scheme are as follows: o BRESFIBNT
Number of
Share share option Exercise
option type Date of grant granted Exercisable period price
R R E
BRERR REBH BE T&EEH TEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 96,000 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
£t 20179 2H 23R 20173 16 B E20274%63 A 15H 0.42#7T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 96,000 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
i 2017F2H23H 2018F 3 H16 HE2027%F3 A 15H 0.42% 7T
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i)

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

24. B R El (&

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BEXABHEBENBERESTE
(#&)
Out of the 192,000 outstanding share options, 192,000 7192,00017 AR ITEERIES - AH
share options (2017: 96,000) were exercisable as at 31 192,00017 #& A% # (2017 £ : 96,000
March 2018. 7) AR 201843 A31 HATHE -
Share options and weighted average exercise price are PR 5 HA RS 2 B R % hn 4 T
summarised as follows for the reporting periods BYITEEBmn T -
presented:
2018 2017
20185 20174
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options  exercise price share options exercise price
¥ ANHE T 15
BREHE TEE RS A 712 B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at beginning A #) i# R 17 &
of the year 192,000 0.42 — —
Granted [ — — 192,000 0.42
Exercised BT = — - -
Expired/cancelled B &M,/ — — - -
Outstanding at end of RERBAKRITE
the year 192,000 0.42 192,000 0.42

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had
exercise price of HK$0.42 (2017: HK$0.42) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.9 years
(2017: 9.9 years). The weighted average fair value of
share options granted during the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$0.178 per share option.

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, were
calculated using the binomial pricing model with different
assumed holding period prior to the optional expected
exercise of the options.

MR2018F 3 A31H W K771 2 BB
HEATIE(E 50.4278 7T (20174 : 0.42
BIT)  ENMEEHRBREOTEHE
8.9 (20174 : 9.94F) - R&E E 2017
FIANBLEFEEL ZERED
MEFHRFELETHBRE178
BT ©

BRENRHBHZAFE HEK
ARNEFBEHMTERERENZ TR
REFAHRN —_BAAETERLG
E_o
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

0]

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date 23 February 2017
Number of share options 192,000
Share price HK$0.42
Risk-free rate 1.91%
Expected volatility 53.95%
Time-to-maturity 10 years

The risk-free rate is based on yield rate of the zero coupon
Hong Kong government bonds with durations similar to
the expected lives of the share options.

Expected volatility was determined by using historical
volatility of market comparable companies with similar
business to the Company within a period similar to the
expected lives of the share options. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The fair value of the share options granted is
approximately HK$34,000 in aggregate. The Group
recognised a total expense of HK$16,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$18,000) in relation to
the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by the Company.

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was
conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to the eligible participants of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

24. B ETHE &

()

(i)

BXARBE

(&)

ZAEE 2 B ABURIOT ¢

Al B R RE S 8

# it B H 20174

2A23H
fEAR 2B 192,000
BHER 042737t
fm 5, b ) 1.91%
SEEEN 53.95%
Bl A B R 104

4 JE g M) R U0 B R B SR BB IR TR
HERHUZEERNTERSES

l‘l&ﬁﬁ%—‘u Ev— °

TEHRETEBERN EERER
HEHROUBMMEERRFEBKE
L&Y T 355 A] B 821X 5] Y JBE 52 IR B
E-RBEEREBHREM  N&
BRAANERAzBRBFEFHER T E
FECTERIETRAEENEZE
1 38 o

ERTBREZATESEED
34,000/ Jr o & Z=2018%F3 HA31H
HFEE AEEERARARES

RAFRBEERBREAESRLE ZE
% 4 HE 72 5 S 4258 16,0007 7T (2017
£ : 18,0003 7T) °

B ESTE
MR2017F2H218  E— R T A &
RN — B ER S ([BE ST
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BREASEERIMBRERES
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BB SN B2 ) LA I 3 B AN £% [ 32 7% A
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the
Group. The basis of eligibility of any participant to the
grant of any option shall be determined by the Board (or
as the case may be, the independent non-executive
directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

24. B REET & ()

(ii)
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company as
from the adoption date (excluding, for this purpose,
shares issuable upon exercise of options which have been
granted but have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company) must not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the Listing Date.
Therefore, it is expected that the Company may grant
options in respect of up to 60,000,000 shares (or such
numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from time to
time) to the participants under the Share Option Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at
any time by approval of the shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled
or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of
the Company from time to time. No share options shall be
granted under any schemes of the Company (including
the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30%
limit being exceeded.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period up to the date of offer to grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
offer to grant. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or
any of their respective close associates) must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the option). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director (or any of their respective close associates) will
result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been
granted since its adoption.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employers and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss
represents contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by
the Group at rates specified in the rule of the MPF scheme. As
at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contributions as stated above and
there is no forfeited contribution arose upon employees leaving
the retirement benefit scheme and which were available to
reduce contributions payable.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had total commitments
under operating leases in respect of non-cancellable operating
leases for land and buildings to make payment in the future
years as follows:

25.

26.

BERKER

AEEDREFECR B MERTE S & %
PDHRE REBERERILBHMER
BEsral((REETE]) - 2B
REBBELREANEENTEREM~TOR ARG
goRiEmEetE BEETRERENA
mztEHBEERBE AN EF
5 AR Y A # _ER 30,000 TTATAR IR ©
% et 8l LR BB B -

RIEBZERHOBRKETEIKAN AR EEIZ
BHESHTERAURENEERBESF
BB S E A BB IE - R20184F
20173 A318 » Br £ ATl A9 83k
BN REBWEEMEASE BIFE
HEBRERABANFEMEELERTA
LAJRE > - 3R A9 R IR AR 3R o

REHEERE

MR2018F K 2017F3A31H » AEEIRE
KETHEEB L RIEFTOT A BEL
EHENARFEERELBNOT :

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group as lessee AEEEREAEA
Within one year R—FA 1,419 92
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFERLF(BREER
M) 549 —
1,968 92

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one year to two
years (2017: one year) and rentals are fixed over the terms.

HEBE/SNF—FEMF(2017F ¢ —
FIREERHARNRBEEESR °
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27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. EXREE
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHE T
Authorised but not contracted for: ERERREL:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEB ¥ ¥ - iR & R 240
Contracted but not provided for: EETAYE & R -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE W% - ME & &R & =
28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BELRSG
(i) save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, (i) BRYBREEMIOABEEEIN -
the Group had no significant transaction with related #H =20184F M2017F3A31H ILEF
parties for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. E AEEHMECANEREEIR
% o
(ii) The remunerations of key management personnel, which (i) xEE TEEBREALAQAE
are the directors of the Company during the year, were as ECBEZHMY RO
follows:
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHE T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 8,604
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 284
Share-based compensation ARGt BE TR EHE 8

8,896
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, as disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements, the Actual Use of the Property does not comply
with the Permitted Use and is breach of section 25(1) of the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
for failure to notify the Buildings Department regarding the
change of land use.

Although the Group changed the use of the Property from head
office to warehouse during the year ended 31 March 2018, and
the use of the Property as warehouse is complied with the
Permitted Use, the prosecution under the provisions of the
Buildings Ordinance may be commenced within 12 months of
the commission of the offence or within 12 months of the same
being discovered by or coming to the notice of the relevant
government departments. As such, as at 31 March 2018 and
2017, pursuant to section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the
maximum exposure of the fine as a result of the aforesaid
matter is approximately HK$100,000.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group's policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways
to access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial
risk exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of
the Company.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

B 75 [ B B B ()

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities () ZEFEI N ERMEERE
by category BEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: B K EWREIE
Trade receivables =Y 1 &0 100,180 82,087
Deposits and other receivables ?E/i\&,ﬁ\{’ﬂﬂguﬂl XI18 3,383 1,624
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 39,488 71,416
143,051 155,127
Financial liabilities SRAE
At amortised cost: B AT BR
Trade payables 5N RIE 12,790 12,154
Accruals, deposits and other payables &R - T;z & REHAM
J& 1~ R I8 30,495 42,568
Bank borrowings RITE 17,533 39,643
60,818 94,365

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade
and other receivables and cash and bank balances.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$35,004,000 (2017:
two customers of HK$34,792,000) as at 31 March 2018.

The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks
with high quality external credit ratings.

(b)

= E R R

AEENGERRIZEANEE
2 R E M EWHIAIARR & RRTT
RRMEH -EEEEREA £
ERR ZEEERREBRFELE
HEBL o

MR2018F3B31B "EEHE &
P EERR MEEFMNESER
X T8 535,004,00078 7T (2017 £«
£ & P 34,792,000 7T) °

ReRRITEHNEERRA AR
B &t IZ%;TEZ%E:%%T%?I\%B
EEFR BAERHFBEMNRT -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(9]

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
March 2018 and 2017 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors
of the Company have closely monitored and reviewed the
recoverability of the financial assets and the directors of
the Company consider such risk is not significant.

The Group’s management considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired under review are of
good credit quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancement.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade and other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks
and financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

30. i AMER @
(b) FERK @

(9]

MR20184F KX2017F3A318 i 4
FARERTHASZEEERcME
EEBEMNEE BAMEBRNRAE
ERRAGAEVBRARAZINN
ZEEENEESE - BRARE
BEEERR  AAREEFYE
BEkFEeREEN AT REE - &

ARREERRUSRARBEHREE -
AEBERERR REHEEK

BMENMELLEREEDREEAR
HMEEER(BREAHSE) -

AEENEREEMERERY X
HMEEIREETER-

REE S E R

MEBE & R B AN R R
HESREBEAEENEEINERA
- ASEHEEEEZEI R EM
ENRBELEREEEREHENRS
BExoRk BTRERESREESR
[

AEENBRRAEREEERDE
EERLREERTEZENARB
o NERASEERTENRS
EEEREZBZARRITEREREE
ESRAMERIAOBMEBE  UE
NEEBMERBRREHORBESLS
sk o

TRUPALAEESREBRRE Y
ROBTAENIHBER DERK
MERER(BEERBAE O XK
(e R ZE M R)ERHRE B MR
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 30. B E R EE @)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBELRAR @

At 31 March 2018 A2018%3 A 31H

Trade payables Z ZENFIE
Accruals, deposits and ~ EEtEM  E & &
other payables Hh FE A ROE

Bank borrowings RITER

Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1yearoron  More than
amount amount demand one year
[EEEOF S
BMEHIE  M1FRK
FREE R B2k 180k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2017 7"2017%3A31H
Trade payables B 5B IR 12,154 12,154 12,154 —
Accruals, depositsand  JEETE R - HE &
other payables H b & 5 3RIB 42,568 42,568 42,568 —
Bank borrowings RITER 39,643 41,079 41,079 —

94,365 95,801 95,801 =
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

(d)

30. Bf A B B (@)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "REBE SR &)
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the ZEINAREFENEBERR - KA A
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the EER2AE B TATEBBEK
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate VEER - RRBEERAE  RIT
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that ERBEETXRABIEANER RS
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the &=t 2Nz B EE S :
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements
which are summarised in the table below:
More than More than
Total oneyear two years
contractual  Less than but less but less
Carrying undiscounted oneyearor thantwo  thanfive More than
amount amount on demand years years five years
EEIFES
BRERE —FRE —FUEE WENLLE
REE wmE RER LRWE LPREF RFUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FAT TAT TAT
At 31 March #2018 5
2018 3A31H 17,533 18,822 9,750 1,624 4,873 2,575
At 31 March 2017 F
2017 3A31H 39,643 42,017 24,828 7,849 4,728 4,612
Interest rate risk (d) F ==

The Group's interest rate risk arises from variable rate
bank balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest
rate risk exists on those balances subject to floating
interest rate when there are unexpected adverse interest
rate movements. The Group’s policy is to manage its
interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to
ensure that there are no unduly exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are approximately fixed
when necessary.

A reasonable change in interest rates in the next twelve
months is assessed to result in insignificant changes in the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits.

AEBMMNEXRRKERIBNEX
FREMRTHESRRRITENR W
REZTRAN B AR EEE - A
MERBRAEFENRZEXIRRF
BHENER ARENRKE
RBEERANEEENE@AR - X
BROBREANKEHETG AR
BERR YEEFEREBEEMRD
AR o

BARETITER+—_EAARMNENE
BEEHEERAKERFE ARG T
KRB N HIRE R -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at
the end of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming
amounts of these financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the year were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis points increase or decrease in the prevailing rates
of relevant banks is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
for variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$73,000 (2017: HK$166,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as all balances carry interest rate below 0.1%.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the Group’s financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders, to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital and to support the Group’s stability and
growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to
shareholders.

7R ME 22 JBe 7 8 A7 B 23 )

30. iR KMER @
(d) F = @)

31.

(e)

TGERE DT T ER FRHRT
BN EXRABREE - Z 2T R
BRERHAEENZZTERTA
ZHEAREFARAREEMRE -
MEZEEAEAI2RMNEER
R E R ARBESRITIRITA RA ¥ 3
NPESOEEF - fEEE B H A X W
BeBr e EFMIELMTE -

WERITIE R 2B FI R £F 1 P&
SO EMEMAEZERFT
B BALEEFRAMNKRRERS B
SEL /18 hn #973,0005% 7T (2017 4F
166,00078 JT) °

BT A RITEBRDIZER0 1%
MEFE MAB2IAKERT
REARHBRE DT -

D FERR

ARBEERA AEEMBHHRE
NEZEHEXNABERNEREER
TRAENREEEEQFERS -

EXEHE

AEENERNEEBRARERAEEE
BREMEEN  URBRERKEMN AR
AEREREEN R REEARRE
HIB B AR A R X FHFA KRB/ RE K Ig

£ o

AEEEBYERNEHREEEEARR
B BRAKERKNEAREZR AR
BERER&EDR -
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement
of financial position as capital.

31. EXREE @)

REAEEBEMS ARAESFHRES
MBARRRIZI W BREBERER

2018 2017

2018 F 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHBT

Bank borrowings RITER 17,533 39,643
Total debt A=y 17,533 39,643
Total equity B 113,440 91,620
Gearing ratio EXRBEHX 0.15 0.43

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32. RERERERMT
STATEMENTS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BESEEIELM A EEE
Bank
borrowings
RATE R
(note 19)
(B EE19)
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2017 1201754818 39,643
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREREH
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIERATIS A 246,865
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITER (268,975)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERCREZ BB (22,110)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31H 17,533
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33.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

33. AR R BHKEARR T

2017
20174
Notes HK$'000
B & F& T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR 2= 34 =
Current asset REBEE
Prepayments T RIE —
Amount due from subsidiaries JE L B B A R FE =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 58,451
58,451
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits and other payables [fEZF & « 24 K H b
JE 5 3R IE 7,576
Amount due to a subsidiary B — RN E AR RIE 7,419
14,995
Net current assets and netassets FHEETFERTIEE 43,456
EQUITY =
Share capital A% X 22 6,000
Reserves = 23 37,456
Total equity EREE 43,456

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 May 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
REN
Director

EF

EEEEEN2018F5A25 B 4 kiR #E
FZEL A TRERSE

Sze Tan Nei

e 73 4

Director

EF
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 34 RfiB DT 2 EXH

MEBARFBENT

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Equity interest

Place of owned by the
incorporation/ Issued ordinary Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
&t i AR 3z, ERTEBR ZAATMN3A31AE
i) NECIRCR R B R 2 BERENKRE FTEXK
%
2018 2017
20185 20174
Directly held:
BEERE
Winson Group Hong Kong BVI US$1 100 100  Investment holding
Limited
KIBEEEFERR QA REBREULEE 1%7T REER
Indirectly held:
B&EFA -
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100  Provisions of environmental
Company Limited ("HK") hygiene, airline catering
support and related
services
KIBE R R B R A A BB ([E%]) 6,000,000 T RERREE M=
B ELAEERY
Winson Professional Pest HK HK$8,275,000 100 100  Provisions of pest
Control Company Limited management services
BEEE R ERAA HB 8,275,000 7T RHEREERY
Wealthy Strong Investment ~ HK HK$6,652,026 100 100  Property holding
Limited
ERREFRAA S 6,652,026 7% 7T MERHA

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting

periods.

BMEARAMNBARANREMRAIBA
EAREEEETA R REEEFES
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the four years ended 31 March 2018, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and the prospectus dated
28 February 2017 issued by the Company is set out below. The

ik B REZ

B 75 3R R M AR Al iR 2017 F

2A2BFIEMNHEREENAEEEZ2018F
3ABINEAFENEEUAREERAER
BHINNMT - FESTAERSEEZTBRED

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. — & e
2018 2017 2016 2015
2018 20174 20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FAT FAT
Results 4
Revenue U #5 508,106 467,513 449,758 369,212
Profit for the year F N g Al 21,804 8,679 18,814 14,331
Assets and liabilities EERAEE
Total assets BB E 186,099 195,416 139,366 128,356
Total liabilities BfERE 72,659 103,796 110,610 118,414
Total equity AT 113,440 91,620 28,756 9,942
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